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THE WORD OF

MANAGEMENT

2014 has been a challenging year for Albania 
Economy and for the banking industry as 
well.  Albanian banking system has been 
affected by a low credit growth with 2.2% 
increase due to a lack of demand for loans, 
both from individuals and businesses and a 
deterioration of loan portfolio quality. 

However, the banking system showed the 
capacity to face efficiently these challenges 
by building up internal capacities, through 
strengthening banks’ balance sheets and 
enhanced human resources, and adjusting 
business model to new market conditions. 
 
Societe Generale Albania Bank has been 
profitable on 2014, as per three last 
consecutive years and in improving trend, 
which is nowadays a privileged starting point 
for positive results. 

Total deposits grew in 2014 by 4.5% to reach 
416 M EUR, allowing us to increase our 
support to the Albanian Economy, directly 
through financing our clients and indirectly 
through Government bonds investments. As a 
matter of fact, our loan portfolio expanded by 
4.8% on a year to year basis, to 289 M EUR. 
I need to highlight that this growth has been 
obtained without downgrading SGAL loan 
portfolio quality, as demonstrated through the 
lowest NPL ratio among the banking system 
9.62% as end of December 2014.

Societe Generale Albania achieved this 
performance from investment in human 
resources for several years; eventually the 

local team is capable to undertake larger 
responsibilities and address much more 
complicated banking requests from clients.  

We have always put all our efforts to have 
a diversified but holistic approach, tailored 
upon our customers and Albanian society 
needs. Our aim is to continue in this context 
is to be a factor and a very active player not 
only of the banking system, but of the overall 
economy at the same time. 

Furthermore I would like to mention our social 
contribution. Societe Generale Albania has 
always offered its collaboration in different 
projects and programs undertaken from 
domestic and international actors, while on 
the other side, has played also a significant 
role through sponsorships and other social 
events.

Our main ambition for the year 2015 will 
remain clear and ambitious. We aim to 
become a reference in the market as a 
customer centered bank, for customer 
care, professionalism, trustworthiness & 
fairness, for product offer & efficiency of 
services in order to achieve growth and 
sustainable profitability. 

Frédéric Blanc

Chief Executive Officer

Dear Customers, 
shareholders and Employees,
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CORPORATE BANKING

SGAL maintains its growth path among 
corporate clients through dedicated 
relationship managers with an individual 
approach to clients. They are deployed in 
two segments, one for large corporate and 
one for corporate - SME.

The strategic goal of the corporate segment 
is to develop financing, value-added 
services and advisory, while reliably meeting 
the clients day-to-day banking needs. The 
clients are offered customised financial 
solutions in 40 locations.

Key Data SGAL,                      
(standalone sGAL EURO milion)

2014 2013           %

Volume of loans     187.8 179.4 4.7

Volume of deposits     54.4  50.2  8.0

+4.7%

2013 2014

17
9.

4 18
7.

8

Volume of loans 
(EUR million)

8
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LARGE CORPORATE

Several distinguished aspects characterized 
the large corporate market during 2014.

Residual of pessimism from previous years 
faded only slowly and there were minimal 
investments into new projects and company 
developments. Demand for operating finance 
was stable at a subdued level.

In the second half of the year, SGAL noted 
a modest recovery in the economy and 
increasing optimism among large corporate 
in relation to new investments and projects in 
infrastructure sector.

In 2015, therefore, the Bank expects to 
see greater interest in financing new 

projects, in acquisitions and in refinancing 
existing transactions as per the one done in 
2014 for an amount of €35M involving six local 
commercial banks. With its well-established 
business model, sophisticated products and 
services, and in combination with Group 
specialists in various business areas, SGAL 
can offer the most advantageous solutions for 
their activities and developing their business.

The year 2014 was interesting from deposits 
resilience. The deposit gain related especially 
to arrears settlement from the Government 
and the minimal levels of investments into new 
projects. That meant companies were holding 
larger balances on their current accounts. 
Nevertheless, the segment did show a 4, 7% 
increase in loans.

2013 2014

50
.2 54

.4

Deposits of Large Corporate
(EUR million)

+8%

 

2013 2014

17
9.

4 18
7.

8

Loans to Large Corporate
(EUR million)

+4.7%
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TRANSACTION AND PAYMENT SERVICES
TRADE FINANCE

TRANSACTION AND PAYMENT SERVICES

SGAL Business Operation unit has been 
responsible for managing corporate clients 
operation towards domestic market and 
international outgoing payments.

Non cash payment operations

SGAL activity decreases in the area of 
domestic non-cash payments, according to 
market trend – average growth decrease of 
22% versus 2013.

In Foreign Payments, the bank recorded a 
year on year decrease of 8% in the volume 
of payments due to lower consumption of 
consumer goods, meaning less imports 
from abroad.

Cash Transactions

The cash transactions numbers has increased 
by 22% and volumes declined by 18% year on 

year. This trend was caused by the economic 
situation existing in the Albanian market during 
2014 as well as clients continuing preference 
for non-cash payments instruments.

TRADE FINANCE

In Trade Finance, there was significant 
growth of almost 33% in volume of bank 
guarantees issued.

In view of the situation in the area of 
public procurement and statutory changes 
regarding distribution of fuels and 
cigarettes, clients more frequently applied 
for guarantees with shorter tenors.

As well SGAL succeeded to structure and 
advise corporate client in drafting a SBLC 
with major USA Company for an amount of 
US$ 30M.

+33%
Growth in the 
number of Bank
Guarantees.

in Trade Finance

10
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TRANSACTION AND PAYMENT SERVICES
TRADE FINANCE

TREASURY

Treasury Department is focused in client’s 
intermediation and access to financial 
market and instruments with the objective of 
maximizing client satisfaction, reaching an 
optimum level of risk versus profit profile. The 
department organization guarantees a clear 
segregation of duties and increased efficiency.

Despite the rather unfavorable market 
conditions, however, satisfactory results were 
achieved in transactions with corporate clients. 
The slight decline in revenues caused by lower 
volumes and pressure to squeeze margin on 
F/X products was compensated by a focus on 
Assets & Liabilities instruments.

The revenues generated form Treasury 
Department are composed mainly by FX 
trading activity (Spot & Forward outrights) as 
well as income from managing Bank Assets & 
Liabilities with focus on optimizing the balance 
sheet mix and minimizing the related risks.

Leasing Activities

During 2014, Sogelease succeeded to further 
develop its activities and outstanding portfolio 
standing at € 4,8M has grown by 20%.

Sogelease diversification strategy paid off 
in developing financing for new range of 
equipments in the field of Telecommunication 
& I.T. Transportation, logistic, construction.

Soglease market share in 2014 is established 
at 9% in progression of 2%. They have 
recorded a net profit after tax of € 381K, 
increased by 62% compared with 2013.
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RETAIL
BANKING

RETAIL BANKING
BRANCHES NETwORK

Retail Banking 

2014 has been not an easy year for the 
activity of Second Tier Banks, especially 
coming after an electoral year (2013) 
which was accompanied also from the 
Governments’ rotation. 

Societe Generale Albania Bank has increased 
significantly the new lending volumes but 
this was also accompanied from a high level 
of prudence and always in compliance with 
our risk criteria. The NPL ratio is among the 
lowest in the market and this performance 
was successfully kept even during 2014. 

During 2014 the Retail active clients’ portfolio 
was increased with 6.96% compared with 
the December 2013 figures. This has been 
possible due to the large number of Payroll 
agreements signed (in numbers and volumes) 
with both private and public institutions. 

Societe General Albania Bank has continued 
to apply a very controlled growth policy in 
terms of deposits, while looking always after a 
satisfactory level of profitability. During 2014, 
despite the pricing policies, the Bank has 
succeeded to increase her deposit volumes by 
+ 0.1%. By the end of 2014 Societe Generale 
Albania has managed to reach 5.64% market 
share in the Retail Deposits, while at the end 
of 2013 it was 5.54%. 

During 2014, Retail Division has focused not 
only in increasing the lending and deposits 
business from Retail clients (Individuals 
and SME), but at the same time has paid 
attention even to the other type of products 
offered to them.

Branches Network

Another focus of our Bank remains the 
service quality and at this point, a very crucial 
element part of it is also the environment 
where our customers are served.

During 2014 we continued to invest in order 
to improve our premises:

1. Berat Branch was reconstructed;  
2. Bilisht Branch was reconstructed; 
3. 1 new ATM was installed in Tirana;
4. 1 new ATM was installed in Lalzi Bay;

14
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COMMERCIAL ORGANIzATION AND MARKET 
THE DEVELOPMENT OF PRODUCTS AND 
BANKING SERVICES

Commercial Organization 
and Market Development

During 2014, Commercial Organization and 
Market Development Sector have been 
focused to increase the active customers’ 
portfolio and the number of products sold 
for Retail segments. During 2014 was also 
implemented a cross selling tool in order 
to have a better management of the active 
customers’ portfolio. Tracking and monitoring 
on regular basis these KPI showed that Societe 
Generale Albania has increased significantly 
the Retail commercial indicators.   

In the same line with our Bank strategy, this 
Sector has been focused also in service quality 
offered from our Branches. Quality Service 
Center has performed a survey for service 
quality, through contacting our customers 
we have tested our staff skills from different 
prospective, starting from the welcoming 
and continuing with the presentation of the 
products and services, identification of needs 
and conclusion of the deal.  

The results were very impressive while at the 
same time enabled us to concentrate our 
efforts in those areas where there was need 
for improvement.

The Development 
of Products and Banking services 

During 2014 Societe Generale Albania Bank 
has also been focused on monitoring the 
performance of the current products in the 
market, in order to properly understand the 
strengths and weaknesses for each of them, but 
always from the customer point of view. Apart 
of it, in order to meet every customer need, we 
have also worked to launch some additional new 
products, while carefully analyzing and having 
in consideration specific requirements from 
specific segments.

1. MPAY - improving with new functionalities 
this innovative service for Albanian market. 
During 2014, this product has offered new 
functionalities such as the automatic payment of 
electricity bill and the Digitalb Card payment only 
using a mobile phone.

2. Visa Premier Debit Card - After a market 
research and the study of the existing clients’ 
portfolio, Societe General Albania has launched 
VISA Premier Debit Card linked with a current 
account in Euro. This card offered also a travel 
life insurance for its holders. 

3. Premier Base and Premier Gold Package 
- The launching of VISA Debit Card in EUR was 
also accompanied with the launching of the 
two new packages linked with this Card. In this 
way during 2014, Societe Generale Albania has 
offered for his payroll customers (with a EUR 
salary) two dedicated packages fulfilling so their 
needs and their requirements.

4.  Automating the consumer loan process - 
During 2014 SGAL has also implemented a new 
application in order to optimize the consumer 
loan process and to reduce the time needed until 
the loan disbursement phase. In this way all the 
consumer loans can be analyzed and processed 
within one working day. 

2014 was also followed from several commercial 
campaigns, which aimed to promote the usage 
of the products that our customers are equipped 
with, through emphasizing the advantages and 
benefits that they could have.



RETAIL
BANKING QUALITY SERVICE CENTER

Quality service Center

Quality Service Center is a structure created 
since 2012, and during this year has focused its 
activity in these main areas: 

• Assistance offered to clients - 
complaints handling and info giving 
in the right moment

• Support for the sales force in our 
Branches;

Also, during 2014 Quality Service Center was 
intensively involved in:

1. Promotion of different products;
2. Informing customers with a negative 

balance;
3. Activation of the dormant clients;
4. Data cleaning for all the Retail 

customers;

Our customers can contact our Quality Service 
Centre specialist through the phone numbers 
which are at their disposal free of charge and 
from Monday to Saturday.

16
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VIP Branch

VIP Branch, opened on July 2011, is designed 
and has always functioned focusing its 
activity toward a dedicated treatment of the 
Individual VIP Clients of the Bank. 

The results of this Branch in these 3 years have 
been quite impressive, including here not only 
a significant business volume generated in 
both, loans and deposits, but also the creation 
of a very qualitative customer portfolio.

Elevation of the customer portfolio size and 
most important their loyalty with the Bank, 
building of a very healthy lending portfolio and 
remaining decently competitive in the deposits 
market, have been the key objectives of this 
Branch.

Another very important aspect which was 
never missed from VIP Branch has been the 
strengthening of the synergy with the Branches 
Network and Business Division, creating thus a 
very fruitful collaboration between these parties.

RETAIL
BANKING VIP BRANCH
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   PiLLAr 1. 
   People & structures

   PiLLAr 2. 
   Knowing the limits

 

   PiLLAr 3.       
   Monitoring & Action 

Creating the necessary 

structures to identify in 

time risks

Encourage a selfcontrol 

culture

Continuous monitoring of 

placed limits

Quick reaction to their 

over-passing

Convert risk in quantitative 

terms

Know the capacity 

and willingness of the 

institution to bear risk 

and make sure the 

organisation knows that

RISK 
MANAGEMENT

RISK MANAGEMENT IN 
SOCIETE GENERALE ALBANIA

Risk Management in societe Generale Albania

Societe Generale Albania has built and consolidated its risk management culture by creating 
an effective risk management system (ERM System) that includes the following:

- policies and procedures that embed the highest risk standards and which require to be 
implemented throughout the organization;

- identification and quantification of risks;
- identification of overall exposure and contribution of each risk factor;
- a proper reporting process which continuously feeds management with appropriate 

information needed for decision making;
- monitoring of compliance with limits and procedures; 

Societe Generale Albania has created structures that ensure making cautious steps, and 
which carefully manage risk in each part of their activity. Continuous monitoring, but most 
of all self-control and responsibility, are the key characteristics of success.
 
Our staff is involved in a permanent process of control, which aims at controlling risk in each 
individual’s activity. 

Risk management in Societe Generale Albania relies on three main pillars. 



It is business orinted

It is risk-appetite driven

Strong managerial involvement and appointed staff has clear responsibilities and roles and is 
activevly involved in the daily management of the risks born by their operations

Tight framework of internal procedures and guidelines

It relies on adequate information and reporting mechanisms available to all levels of Management

Promotes transparency and independence of risk management department from business

It requires continuous/periodic risk identification, measurement, reporting and control

It is dynamic, constantly changing in response to the changes in the environment

RISK 
MANAGEMENT

RISK MANAGEMENT DEPARTMENT 
ORGANIzATIONAL STRUCTURE
PRINCIPLES OF RISK MANAGEMENT

1. Risk Management Department Organizational structure

HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

Credit Risk 
sector

Credit 
Management 
and Market 
Risk sector

Recovery 
sector Legal sector Permanent 

Control sector

2. Principles of risk management 

Societe Generale Albania risk management 
policies are designed to identify and 
analyze these risks, to set appropriate 
risk limits and controls, and to monitor the 
risks and adherence to limits by means of 
reliable and up-to-date administrative and 
information systems. 

SGAL regularly reviews its risk management 
policies and procedures always aiming best 
practice and compliance with the group 
bank normative. Individual accountability 
and professionalism built and continuously 
strengthened through trainings, are stressed 
out to create a disciplined and constructive 
culture and environment of risk management 
and control. 

Societe Generale Albania management framework relies on the following guiding principles:

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8
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RISK 
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SGAL LENDING POLICY
ClIent Interest ProteCtIon, 
TRANSPARENCY AND CONFIDENTIALITY

3. sGAL Lending Policy

SGAL has a clear lending policy which 
purpose is to present a clear view of the 
desired direction of SGAL lending activity, 
identifying the main targeted clients, 
industries, products as well as a desired 
composition of SGAL loans portfolio that 
ensures a diversified customers base and 
supports sound growth with acceptable and 
mitigated risks. 

This document presents a framework of 
the main standards and principles that 
should guide the lending activity of SGAL 
ensuring that it is consistent with the 
bank’s objectives and risk appetite. This is 
in function of achieving desired business 
results while effectively managing risks.

SGAL aims to offer through its network 
short and long term loans for the Albanian 
businesses and individuals, establishing 
open and transparent collaborative 
relationships.

Societe Generale Albania respects at any 
time the rules and restrictions compulsory 
by the legal and regulatory framework of 
Bank of Albania as well as any restriction 
provided by the mother bank or other 
providers of funds. 

4. Client Interest Protection, Transparency 
and Confidentiality

The Bank guarantees equal access towards 
loans for clients and rejects loan applications 
only when they are based on violation of 
policies and procedures, or risk factors higher 
than those acceptable by the bank.

The Bank maintains fully transparent loan 
terms and rates, as an essential part of 
its relationship with the clients. The Bank 
makes sure that its clients well understand 
these terms and conditions and they take 
decisions related to the loan that best fits 
their interest. The Bank employees provide 
all required information to clients regarding 
loan terms and conditions.

All aspects of customer relationship 
with the bank are strictly confidential. 
Bank employees ensure that all data 
and information on the clients are well 
maintained and available only to relevant 
Bank personnel.

The Bank is legally obliged to release credit 
information without client consent only when 
a court order is presented to the bank, when 
it is requested so by Bank of Albania or by 
other institutions that have such legal rights.



MAIN DEVELOPMENTS IN LOANS’ PORTFOLIO 
DURING YEAR 2014

5. Main developments in loans’ portfolio 
during year 2014

Lending activity during year 2014 was 
performed under a slow macroeconomic 
growth, increased liquidity in the bank, 
decreased bases interest rates, and a high 
average of non-performing loans in the 
system ending with 22.8% in December 
2014. Portfolio composition was reviewed 
in scope of compliance with Basel II new 
regulation to be prepared for year 2015 and 
necessary changes have been made. 

SGAL portfolio of loans showed still steady 
growth during the year. On the other hand, 
non-performing loans continued to be at 
well controlled levels leading as a result at 
one digit NPLR (9.7%) at the end of the year, 
taking the leader position for the second 
year in the banking system. Composition 
of portfolio shows an equilibrium between 
Retail and Non Retail segments, with the 
latter gaining more share during the year.

Therefore, year 2014 was closed with 60% 
share in non-retail business clients and 40% 
share of retail clients. 

Year 2014 registered an increase of loans’ 
portfolio for SGAL of about LEK 1,784 Mio 
(5%). On the other hand, non-performing 
loans’ portfolio increased with during 2014 
by LEK 511 Mio (15%). 

However, the below presented graph 
clearly shows that despite an increase in 
non-performing loans, which is acceptable 
and was expected in the difficult economic 
conditions under which the Albanian 
banking sector is operating, the ratio of 
NPLs to total loans represented by the 
NPLR has maintained at stable levels. Year 
2014 was closed with an NPLR of 9.7%, 
as a result of slow increase in portfolio and 
and well below the average of the banking 
system of 22.8% at end of the same year. 

Composition of Portfolio
per Segment - Dec ’14
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MAIN DEVELOPMENTS IN LOANS’ PORTFOLIO 
DURING YEAR 2014

25.0%

15.0%

5.0%

-5.0%

-15.0%

-25.0%

-35.0%

-45.0%

SGAL Portofolio change per type of client

Individuals, 
-2,3%

Professionals 
11.9 %

VSB
4.7%

Retail portfolio increased during year 2014 by about LEK 49 Mio (0.3%). With regard to 
the non-performing loans, the general trend has been stable with a slight decrease of their 
outstanding which combined with the unchanged situation of the portfolio has contributed 
in maintenance of same NPLR as the 11.1%.

Individuals continue having the highest share in the Retail portfolio (72%) and this portfolio 
decreased during year 2014 by 2.3%. There was an increase on focus and outstanding on 
the retail business side. Professional and very small businesses both increased with 12% 
and 5% respectively but the share on retail portfolio is low.

During year 2014, the Non Retail portfolio increased by about LEK 1,722 Mil (7.4%). With 
regard to the problematic portfolio, it increased during by LEK 308 Mio, resulting in a 
segment NPLR of 8.8%, 1.6 bp more than year 2013.

Due to slow decrease of the loans’ portfolio during 2014 good recovery rations and the 
stability of the non-performing loans’ stock, the portfolio’s structure has presented stability 
in terms of standard loans’ share versus non-performing loan’s share and their composition.

Composition of Loan Portfolio
December '14

Composition of Loan Portfolio
December '13

LOST 6.1%LOST 4.2%

DOUBTFUL 1.8%DOUBTFUL 1.3%

SUBSTANDART
1.7%

SUBSTANDART
3.3%

SPECIAL
MENTIONED 
7.1%

SPECIAL
MENTIONED
6.3%

Corporate, 
8%

SME, 
-33.6%

Standart
83.2%

Standart
84.9%
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MAIN DEVELOPMENTS IN LOANS’ PORTFOLIO 
DURING YEAR 2014

Composition of SGAL portfolio per maturity 
shows a tendency toward the same 
composition of the market and segments’ 
contribution show for a notable dominance 
of loans to corporate clients in the short 
term and medium term portfolio while there 
is more equilibrium in long term due to the 
mortgage loans granted to individuals. 

During year 2014, while maintaining the 
portfolio quality, bank has increased 
the portfolio by crediting sectors well 
performing like service trade and industry 
with NPLR on average of bank’s NPLR 
and has avoided crediting sectors like 
construction and related fields.
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Construction 10.5%
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SGAL Portfolio per Sector of economy
for Corporate & VSB
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MAIN DEVELOPMENTS IN LOANS’ PORTFOLIO 
DURING YEAR 2014

6. Provisioning

Provisioning, as an important activity of the Bank due to its impact on the bank’s expenses 
and its final financial result, is under responsibility of Risk Management Department.

SGAL strictly follows the Bank of Albania and IFRS rules materialized in clear procedures 
and policies that guide the provisioning process. During year 2014 was reviewed the full 
policy of IFRS provisioning aiming to materialize all the characteristics of SGAL portfolio 
history in the model with statistical evidence. The macroeconomic factors, recovery periods 
of collaterals are all taken in consideration.

7. Main business lines and associated risks

Considering the internally implemented processes and procedures, Societe Generale 
Albania assesses its main risks as described in the following picture.
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• Credit Risk

Societe Generale Albania respects at any 
time the rules and restrictions compulsory 
by the legal and regulatory framework of 
Bank of Albania, as well as any restriction 
provided by the mother bank or other 
providers of funds. Its flow of operations 
ensures a high level of monitoring starting 
with the credit granting process up to 
the disbursement phase and the after 
disbursement monitoring (monitoring 
through the entire loan life). Credit Risk 
monitoring includes the counterparty 
risk arising from market transactions and 
the concentration risk arising from large 
exposures. 

High lending standards, optimal 
organizational structure and flow of 
information, presence of risk opinions for 
every loan file, continuous monitoring and 
management feeding with information, and 
a well organized recovery process, lead 
and strengthen the credit risk management 
process in Societe Generale Albania.

Despite the developments in the Albanian 
banking system, during the last two years, 
Societe Generale Albania increased its 
portfolio of loans maintaining a high quality 
of the new granted portfolio and closing 
year 2014 with a level of non-performing 
loans at about 8.8%. This indicator stands 
well below the average market level, putting 
SGAL in a “Low to Medium” factual risk 
band, despite the activity itself classified as 
high risk. 

• structural Risk

Structural Risk includes interest rate 
and exchange rate risks which are risks 
of loss or of depreciation in the bank’s 
assets arising from variations in interest 
or exchange rates. ALM function under 
Finance Department monitors these risks. 
Despite the high possible severity of these 
risks if not properly monitored, managed or 
due to high fluctuations, SGAL estimates 
its factual exposure to structural risks as 
“Low to Medium”. Interest rates and foreign 
exchange rates have shown stability, while 
the bank manages to keep a foreign net 
open position near zero. Besides the overall 
net open position of the bank, internal 
limits are set to enforce monitoring toward 
this risk, as part of early warning systems 
implemented and daily monitored.

• Liquidity Risk

Liquidity Risk, as the risk of the Bank not 
being able to meet its obligations as they 
come due, is monitored and managed by 
ALM function in collaboration with Treasury 
Department. The over liquid position 
puts the Bank under “Low” exposure to 
liquidity risk. The same severity is noticed 
throughout the banking system, result of 
increased level of deposits while lending 
activity remained depressed. 

• Operational Risk

Operational risk, AML & CFT and 
Compliance Risk Management are part 
of Permanent Control Sector within Risk 
Management Department.

Operational risk refers to the risk of 
losses resulting from inadequate or failed 
internal processes, people and systems, 
or external events, including events with 
a low probability of occurrence but a high 
potential for loss. This definition includes 
losses generated by legal, reputation and 
image risk but is not included strategic risk.
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RISK 
MANAGEMENT MAIN BUSINESS LINES AND ASSOCIATED RISKS

• Operational Risk (continued) 

SGAL’s objective is to set up controls of 
its operational risks and approach them 
from a risk/profitability perspective. The 
OR management system within SGAL is 
articulated in:

1. Operational Risk identification and 
assessment that consists in: identifying 
major intrinsic risks inherent to all products, 
activities, procedures and systems, and 
especially with regard to new products, 
new activities, planned acquisitions and 
expansion in treated in the New Products 
Committee; performing relevant Scenario 
Analysis for extreme losses; assess the 
residual operational risks to which the 
bank is exposed on regular basis (Risk 
and Control Self Assessment exercise); 
regularly define, collect and analyze Key 
Risk Indicators (KRI); internal and external 
loss collection with regular frequency.

2.  Operational Risk mitigation assessing 
the degree of vulnerability to these risks, 
taking into account the entity’s prevention 
and control mechanisms, and focusing 
in particular on Permanent Supervision, 
Business continuity and Crisis Management, 
compliance and confidentiality issues.

AML & CFT risk in SGAL is treated with 
a due diligence form the first relation 
instauration with the customer (Know Your 
Customer – KYC procedure), the filtration of 
his profile and the analysis of his transaction 
during the lifecycle relation with the bank.

• Market Risk

Market Risk is the risk of losses resulting 
from changes in the price of market 
products, in volatility and correlations. 
Societe Generale Albania is deemed to be 
not highly exposed to market risk due to its 
limited activity. 
SGAL does not deliberately maintain any 
open position to profit from anticipated 
variations in foreign exchange, interest 
rates, equities, etc. Therefore, in full 
compliance with the Bank Normative on 
“Market Risks”, any position deliberately 
left open and generating market risk is 
strictly FORBIDDEN.

SGAL monitors and respects all limits in 
place set by the mother bank or/and local 
authorities and when these requirements 
differ, the most conservative approach 
is applied.

Daily monitoring involves:

-     Deptor risk
-     Delivery risk
-     Replacement risk
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DIvISION

(It) InForMAtIon teCHnoloGY
PROJECTS AND ORGANIzATION

IT

The main achievements of the IT Department 
during 2014 were:

n   Upgrade of the messaging infrastructure 
to provide larger mailboxes for all users, 
new features to enforce security and 
minimize disruptions, cost savings, easy 
administration by IT and new components 
for email usage on mobile devices.

n “Next Desktop Generation” project 
successfully completed in line with Windows 
XP end-of-life in April 2014. In addition to 
all branch workstations already upgraded in 
2013, the Next Desktop Generation standard 
was applied to almost 200 Head Office 
PCs for reinforcing security and improving 
administration.

n   Acquiring knowledge and developing in-
house projects for optimization of processes 
in workflow management solutions – during 
2014, the IT Development completed 
successfully fully in-house automation of the 
HR training administration process.

n   Integration of Vulnerability Management 
with Patch Management process to 
continuously secure the IT infrastructure and 
mitigate risks by automating vulnerability 
identification and prioritizing implementation 
of fixes based on their risk to the bank’s 
business services.

Projects and Organization

During 2014, the Projects and Organization 
Department has actively managed a portfolio 
of over 120 projects and action plans. 

The main project concluded was the Core 
Banking System Version Upgrade, which 
enabled many new business services and 
customer improvements – straight through 
processing of incoming transfers, corporate 
e-banking (Sogecash Web) integration 
improvements, additional KYC features, 
new process for authorization of high risk 
customer opening, new collateral module 
compliant with Basel II requirements, 
Payment Card Industry Data Security 
Standard compliance, among many others.
 
Other successful projects managed last 
year were Simplification of Package 
Contracts, Optimization of Consumer Loan 
Issuing Process and Scoring Tool Upgrade, 
Packages for High Net Worth Individuals, 
Interface to Deposit Insurance Agency. The 
department had also a key role in projects 
such as Visa Premier Card, Teller Referral 
Scheme, New Processes in Workflow 
Management System (Money Transfer Order 
Automation, E-procurement and E-protocol), 
AML Report rebuilding and FATCA.

The Organization team has delivered 
Core Banking System training to over 120 
employees and formally approved over 100 
new and updated regulations, procedures 
and instructions.

0

J F M A M J J A S O N D

400 

200 

600 

2013 2014

321

357
issues

avg / month

Help desk issues

J F M A M J J A S O N D

100%

99%

98%

97%

2013 2014

99.6%

99.7%
issues

avg / month

Network availibility

90
projects in portfolio

35

23

25

Commercial

Support

Regulatory

Technical

7

Projects by type

30

31



OPERATIONAL 
DIvISION

BACK OFFICE
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Back Office

During 2014, the Back Office Department has 
increased its main activities. 

In overall, the activity related to the processing 
of incoming and outgoing payment orders has 
increased by 7%. Transactions performed for 
treasury activities have increased by 19%. The 
number of total loans disbursed also increased 
by 9%. Requests and orders received by different 
authorities increased by 43%. Meanwhile, the total 
cash in and out of the Cash Processing Unit has 
decreased by 3%.

The service quality of Back Office Department 
was evaluated highly by the internal 
customers in the Front Office. Moreover, a 
very good rating has been achieved in terms 
of control of risks and operational losses.

During 2014, the Back Office Department 
faced and successfully addressed multiple 
challenges thanks to the full dedication of 
its team:

n  An improved process for local currency 
in the Cash Processing Unit after the 
implementation of the new Bank of Albania 
regulation on banknote quality for ATMs.

n   In order to mitigate the risks related to 
cash activity, a Cash Management Workshop 
has been organized to define and implement 
improvement actions.

n   In order to better serve to our network, 
the Back Office Department prepared and 
delivered an important catalogue with all 
the local and foreign banknotes accepted 
at Societe Generale Albania’s counters, 
with all their specific features and elements 
to be considered by our tellers during their 
daily work.

n   Despite the increasing volumes during 
2014, the continuously improving process 
ensured answering to authority requests 
on time.

n     In the area of payments and correspondent 
banking, changes have been introduced 

to automate some payments transactions, 
increase the rate of straight through 
processing of incoming payments and ensure 
compliance with Group correspondent 
banking policies. The Payments sector has 
also given its valuable contribution to the 
FATCA project.

n A very good risk culture has been 
demonstrated during 2014, coordinating the 
operational risk mitigation and permanent 
supervision improvement actions for all 
Operational Division services.

While addressing these challenges, the 
Back Office Department team has kept its 
dedication to offer high quality services to 
its internal customers and also to collaborate 
with them in order to offer the best services to 
the customers of Societe Generale Albania.

Cards and E-banking

The main focus of the Cards and E-banking 
Department during 2014 was to increase 
the quality of service for Societe Generale 
Albania’s customers using the electronic 
channels. Work has been done in two main 
directions. The first one was increasing 
the performance of the ATMs and ensuring 
customers have 24x7 service, by identifying 
the main causes for downtime and addressing 
the preventable ones. The second direction 
was on logging properly all incidents and 
claims reported by the internal and external 
customers and solving them in the shortest 
possible time. 

OPERATIONAL 
DIvISION

BACK OFFICE
CARDS AND E-BANKING

th
ou

sa
nd

s

15

20

10

5

0
J F M A M J J A S O N D

2013 2014

10 554

9 036
names

avg / month

Authority requests (M1)



OPERATIONAL 
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CARDS AND E-BANKING
GENERAL RESOURCES

Cards and E-banking (continues)

The Department has also worked on multiple 
projects – one of the main successfully 
completed projects for the year was Visa 
Premier Card, which went live in June 2014. 
Societe Generale Albania has also added 
Visa brand acceptance on its ATM network 
in addition to MasterCard. Currently, the 
customers of Societe Generale Albania can 
benefit from a network of 63 ATMs throughout 
Albania, supporting different transactions 
such as cash withdraw, balance enquiry, PIN 
change, PIN Reset. The Department has also 
supported other projects – MasterCard Cash 
Back Campaign, Simplification of Package 
Contracts, Implementations of MasterCard 
and Visa Mandates, Core Banking System 
Version Upgrade, Societe Generale Albania 
10 Year Anniversary Card, among others.

ATM security and card fraud prevention has 
been another focus for the Department. In 
collaboration with our Group headquarters 
and the ATM providers, a plan was defined 
to implement various security measures on 
our ATMs.

During 2014, the Internet and Mobile Sector 
part of the Department has coordinated 
successfully the addition of two new 
merchants on the MPAY mobile payments 
platform – OSHEE and Digitalb.

As part of the process automation initiatives, 
SMS Automatic Registration of New 
Subscribers has been implemented. This new 
process ensures activations of SMS service 
in real time, increases customer satisfaction 
and decreases the risk of human mistakes. 

General Resources

In line with the bank’s strategy, the General 

Resources department has pursued its efforts 

to support the growth of Societe Generale 

Albania with cost efficiency and risk control. 

The major activities, in which the department 

was engaged during 2014, were:

n   Cost control and optimization –  29 tenders 

were run for the year, generating savings for 

the amount of 129,000 EUR. 

n   Asset management:

o  Selling of 3 non-banking assets with a sale 

value of 778,000 EUR in a very challenging 
Real Estate Environment;

o Supporting the network expansion and 
optimization by deploying 3 off-site ATMs 
and extending the premises of 1 branch;

o New Head Office & optimizations – an 
extensive study has been undertaken to 
check the possibility for Societe Generale 
Albania to have a dedicated building for its 
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General Resources (continues)

Head Office. After the finalization of the study, 
the decision has been taken to reorganize the 
premises by creating better conditions and 
generating considerable savings in our Real 
Estate costs. 

o Branch Network leases renegotiations – 
In the framework of the Real Estate market 
conditions, GR has taken an initiative to 
renegotiate the lease agreements for the 
branches network in cooperation with Colliers 
International. This initiative has resulted in a 
reduction of the prices for 21,000 EUR/year.

n  Support functions – quality of working 
conditions and banking equipment has also 
been a key focus for the department. All logistic 
issues faced during the activity were addressed 
with dedication and professionalism.  

Internal Quality

Quality of products and processes is now 
an integral part part of every unit and this 
working culture is continually improving from 
year to year. 

During 2014, the project for automation 
of protocol and its integration with other 
systems was successfully implemented. 
This implementation resulted in time savings 
of the staff involved, reduction of human 
mistakes, electronic archiving for majority of 
incoming and outgoing communication and 
of course paper dematerialization.

Members of Operational Division team and 
more concretely from the Organization and 
Project department were trained during 
2014 on Lean Six Sigma aiming to keep our 
business processes lean and boost customer 
satisfaction. The knowledge acquired in 
this training was successfully implemented 
in 2 processes and more processes are 
scheduled for the next year.

Based on the services offered by this division 
each department has identified a series of 
KPIs, both quantitative and qualitative, which 
are measured, controlled and reported on 
monthly bases to the executive committee. A 
more detailed view of different KPI involving 
both Front Office and Back Office team of 
the bank is done on quarterly basis on a 
common FO/BO committee. The scope of 
this committee is to continually improve 
the efficiency of our process and increase 
customer satisfaction.
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CORPORATE 
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 
CSR
HUMAN RESOURCES 

CSR

The business guidelines worldwide do not 
only expect from corporate institutions to 
be successful in their areas of activities 
but also to have a role in contributing to 
their environment. Societe Generale is very 
aware of this tendency and intends to play a 
significant role in this field.

Societe Generale Albania is conscious of 
its responsibility towards its employees, 
clients and environment and has included 
those concerns in its 2014 CSR strategy 
trough 4 main axes: human resources, 
responsible lending, environmental 
awareness and sponsorship.

Human Resources

Societe Generale Albania strengthens its 
commitment during 2014 to assist young 
people entering the job market, helping 
them to develop their values and skills and 
to advance their career. Societe Generale 
Albania supports their ambitions and helps 
them to grow within the institution.

The well being of the employees is crucial 
for any type of enterprise. Societe Generale 
Albania makes a priority in treating all 
employees (and potential candidates) in a 
fair and equal way in terms of salary, job 
position and career management and does 
not tolerate any type of discrimination (age, 
gender, race…), protecting and enhancing 
their interests. 

Also Societe Generale Albania is continuously, 
and trough 2014, improving the free health 
coverage for all bank employees.

Corporate Governance

The good functioning of the Corporate Governance of an institution assures transparency 
and security in the way bank is directed, administered or controlled and guarantees fair 
relationships between internal and external stakeholders. Societe Generale Albania is 
aware of the importance of a proper implementation of the Corporate Governance in the 
bank and aims to improve and consolidate it each year.

As per the local requirements the Shareholders Assembly, Board of Directors and Audit 
Committee are in place since the creation of the bank with the respective composition:

Following the SG Group guide lines, in addition are held two External Committees reporting 
to the Board of Directors: the Risk Committee set up in 2010 and the Compensation and 
Benefits Committee set up in 2011.

Shareholders Assembly:

Majority Shareholder:

 Societe Generale

88.64% 

Minority local shareholders 

11.36%

Audit Committee:

Znj.Biljana Andrevska

Z. Franck de Giorgio

Z.Romeo Mitri

Board of directors:

Z.Christian Celin

Z.Luc Baras

Z.Frederic Blanc

Z. Julien Roche

Z. Aleksander Xhuvani



Responsible lending

Societe Generale Albania drives his lending 
activity through professionalism and quality 
of service, helping its clients to develop and 
to achieve their goals. 

Nevertheless, a bank has a double 
responsibility when financing a client or 
a company. 

First it is accountable for the projects it 
chooses to finance. SG Group applies the 
Equator principles, which are followed by 
Societe Generale Albania by assessing 
social and environmental risk in project 
financing. The other responsibility, when 
granting a loan is towards its clients. 
Indeed a strict loan policy does not only 
protect the bank, but also the clients by 
assuring their possibilities of repayment 
and avoiding the loss of properties they left 
as collaterals. For this purpose, our bank 
is constantly reinforcing the transparency 
towards its clients when granting a loan 
by informing them of possible risks (ie: 
unhedge loans) and carefully analyzing 
each loan application. To resume the CSR 
strategy of the bank in terms of lending is 
to grow in a secure way for the country, the 
bank and its clients.

Environmental concerns

One of the main principles of Societe 
Generale Albania is to evolve the activity 
taking in consider the environmental 
responsibilities. In its objectives is to 
understand and to manage the impact of its 
activity in society.  As in the previous year, 
the bank has been trying in 2014 to limits 
its corporate impact on the environment. 
Many actions are taken in different fields 
to reduce its global consumption (paper, 
energy, fuel…)

sponsorship 

Classical music, contemporary art and 
sport are three key areas of Societe 
Generale Albania’s cultural patronage 
policy.

During 2014, Societe Generale Albania 
was implicated as well in the field of 
solidarity with different donations for 
children foundations and people in need.

Following its sponsorship policy another 
focus was the promotion of France – 
Albania cooperation and francophones.
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HUMAN
RESOURCES

HUMAN RESOURCES 
AND TRAINING DEPARTMENT
EMPLOYMENT
RECRUITMENTS

Human Resources and Training Department 
of Societe Generale Albania Bank works in line 
with the strategic directions of the company 
and aims the support of the business and the 
employees’ development.

As well, the motivation and recognition 
of efficient employees are a major focus 
in the Human Resources and Training 
Department strategy.

Employment

At the end of 2014, Banka Societe Generale 
Albania had a staff of 400 employees, of 
whom 186 (46.5% of staff) work in Head 
Office and 214 (53.5% of staff) work in 
the Branch Network of the Bank. The staff 
includes 284 women (71%) and 116 men 
(29%). 
                                  
The average age of SGAL employees is 
34.78 years. 

At Societe Generale Albania Bank, about 
7% of the staff has high school education, 
75.5% has university degree and 17.5% of 
the staff has postgraduate education.  

During 2014, there were 49 new employees 
of which 17 employees (35%) in Head 
Office and 32 (65%) are in Branch Network. 
In terms of gender, 39 employees (79.6%) 
were female and 10 (20.4%) were male. 
 
Considering the dynamics of the 
organizational structure of Banka Societe 
Generale Albania and the contribution 
of each position in the development and 
performance of the bank, a special 

The bank has continuously invested in hiring 
young and well educated people, but has 
also supported them through a qualitative 
management of the compensation and 
benefits system and by applying preferential 
interest rates for its staff loans as well.

During 2014, as well as over the last years, 
the bank has paid a special attention 
to the internship programs for recent 
graduates and to students continuing their 
undergraduate or postgraduate studies. 
The internship has been considered as 
a successful tool for the attraction of the 
young generation.
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The average age of SGAL 
employees is 34.78 years.

Annual Report, 2014
HR & Training Department
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Training & Development

Societe Generale Albania Bank has paid a 
special attention to the employee training 
and development.

It aims to improve the employee individual 
performance and the realization of the Bank 
objectives as well.

The training programs mainly include: 
promotion of risk culture, commercial 
efficiency and communication and 
negotiation techniques.

In 2014, for every working day have been:

n  62 hours of training delivered
n  19 trainees in training sessions
n  1.76 % of working time dedicated to 

training;
n  44.6 euro spent per participant;

During 2014, the training sessions have 
been categorized into 3 types:

n  39% Internal Training Sessions;
n  26% Societe General Group training 

sessions;
n  35% External Training Sessions 

(IBFS).

HUMAN
RESOURCES trAInInG & DeveloPMent, 2014

Annual Report, 2014
HR & Training Department
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SG Group 35%

Internal 39%

External 26 %

Training session Types, 2014

Training & Development, 2014

Most of the training sessions in SGAL are 
delivered by internal trainers, however 
during 2014 the bank has invested also 
in professional and technical training, 
delivered by specialized external trainers, 
in order to increase the training efficiency 
delivered to the staff.

The general training data during 2014 in 
comparison with the previous year data up 
to 2014:

2013 2014

No. of total training hours 15,645 16,056

No. of total training days 1,956 2,276

Average no. of training sessions per employees 4.9 5.1

Average no. of training sessions per month 6.6 7.05

No. of employees trained once a year 399 390

Average no. of training hours per employee 39.2 44.6

Training Effort 2.10% 2.4%

The year 2014 for the training and development team was a challenging one due to the 
launch for the first time of new training initiatives such as Risk Academy. 

`People development` remains one of our main concerns for the year 2015, therefore, 
specific and professional training programs are projected.
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AUDITOR’S
REPORT

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

The statement of financial position is to be read in conjunction with the notes to and forming 
part of the financial statements set out on pages 52 to 105.

Note 31 December 2014 31 December 2013

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 5 2,988,764 5,580,455 

Restricted balances with Central Bank 6 5,756,788 5,474,472 

Loans and advances to financial institutions 7 1,187,751 1,645,248 

Available-for-sale investments 8 20,514,693 17,536,082 

Loans to customers, net 9.1 38,539,789 37,248,788 

Finance lease receivables 9.2 516,052 488,294

Property and equipment, net 10 594,027 648,385

Intangible assets, net 11 223,666 257,666

Assets acquired by adjudication 12 901,994 880,156

Other assets 13 303,744 159,103

Total assets 71,527,268 69,918,648

Liabilities

Due to financial institutions 14    4,026,273 4,996,978

Due to customers 15  58,899,592 56,688,822

Other liabilities 16 418,473      357,988

Total liabilities  63,344,338 62,043,788

Equity

Paid-up capital 17    6,740,900 6,740,900

Share premium           1,750 1,750

Legal reserve           4,618 4,618

Fair value reserve         50,889 219,819

Retained earnings    1,384,774 907,774

Total liabilities    8,182,930 7,874,861

Total liabilities and equity 71,527,268 69,918,648

Statement of Financial Position as at 31 December 2014
(amounts in ‘000 Lek)
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AUDITOR’S
REPORT

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS AND OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE

The Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income is to be read in conjunction 
with the notes to and forming part of the financial statements set out on pages 52 to 105.

Note Year ended 31 
December 2014

Year ended 31 
December 2013

Interest income 18    3,797,037 4,120,736

Interest expense 19   (1,353,892) (1,850,928)

Net interest income 2,443,145 2,269,808

Fee and commission income 20       364,142 366,593

Fee and commission expense 21        (55,820) (49,531)

Net fee and commission income       308,322 317,062

Profit from foreign exchange transactions 58,466 21,866

(Loss) / Gain from sale of property and equipment (1,244) 14,994

Other (loss) /income, net (30,469) 188

Impairment for loan losses 9 (512,694) (391,560)

Depreciation 10 (102,853) (129,115)

Amortization 11 (49,018) (50,606)

Personnel expenses 22 (666,350) (639,206)

Administrative expenses 23 (867,752) (945,504)

(2,198,667) (2,155,991)

Profit before taxes 579,553 467,927

Income tax expense 24 (102,553) (60,093)

Profit for the year 477,000 407,834

Other comprehensive income

Fair value reserve (available for sale investments)

Net change in fair value for available for sale investments (168,930) 158,585

Total comprehensive income for the year 308,070 566,419

Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income for the 
year ended 31 December 2014 (amounts in Lek‘000)



AUDITOR’S
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Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 December 2014
(amounts in ‘000 Lek)

  Paid-up 
capital

Share 
premium

Legal 
reserve

Fair value 
reserve

retained 
earnings Total

Balance at 1 January 2013 6,740,900 1,750 4,618 61,234 499,940 7,308,442

Subscribed capital - - - - - -

Profit for the year - - - - 407,834 407,834

Other comprehensive income for 
the year

Net change in fair value for 
available for sale investments 

- - - 158,585 - 158,585

Balance at 31 December 2013 6,740,900 1,750 4,618 219,819 907,774 7,874,860

Subscribed capital -

Profit for the year 477,000 477,000

Other comprehensive 
income for the year

Net change in fair value for 
available for sale investments 

(168,930) (168,930)

Balance at 31 December 2014 6,740,900 1,750 4,618 50,889 1,384,774 8,182,930

 The statement of cash flows is to be read in conjunction with the notes to and forming part of the financial statements set out on 
pages 52 to 104.
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Statement of Cash flows for the year ended 31 December 2014
(amounts in ‘000 Lek)

The statement of changes in equity is to be read in conjunction with the notes to and forming part of the financial statements set out on pages 52 to 104.

 Notes  Year ended 
31 Dec 2014

 Year ended 
31 Dec 2013

Cash flows from operating activities:

Profit before taxes 579,553 467,927

Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash
provided by operating activities:

Depreciation 11 102,853 129,115

Amortisation 12 49,018 50,606

Impairment on loan losses   9 512,694 391,559

Loss on disposal of property and equipment 1,244 (14,994)

Interest income 20 (3,797,037) (4,120,736)

Interest expense 21 1,353,892 1,850,928

Cash flows from operating profits before changes in 
operating assets and liabilities (1,197,784) (1,245,594)

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Increase in the restricted balances with Central Bank (281,975) (442,736)

Decrease/(Increase) in loans and advances to financial institutions 457,550 (204,257)

Increase in loans to customers (1,808,186) (3,663,699)

Increase in other assets (76,561) (166,638)

Decrease in due to financial institutions (957,700) 1,788,079

Increase in due to customers 1,957,840 5,402,866

Decrease in other liabilities (39,607) (8,945)

Interest received 3,773,375 4,102,667

Interest paid (1,113,966) (1,779,375)

Income tax paid  (92,067) (60,093)

Net cash generated by operating activities 620,919 3,722,274

Cash flows from investing activities:

Redemption of securities net of (purchases) (3,147,540) (1,924,882)

Purchase of intangible assets (15,017) (57,449)

Purchase of property and equipment (75,537) (85,398)

Proceeds from sale of property and equipment 25,797 37,846

Net cash flows from/(used in) investing activities (3,212,298) (2,029,883)

Proceeds from the issue of shares - -

Net cash generated from financing activities - -

Impact of foreign exchange rate on cash and cash equivalents (311) 323

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (2,591,691) 1,692,714

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of the year 5,580,455 3,887,741

Cash and cash equivalents, end of the year 2,988,764 5,580,455



These financial statements have been approved by the Board of Directors 
of the Bank on 16 March 2015 and signed on its behalf by:

 Frédéric Blanc Albana Hallvaxhiu
 General Director Finance Director
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Statement of Cash flows for the year ended 31 December 2014
(amounts in ‘000 Lek)

1.  General

Banka Societe Generale Albania sh.a. (“the 
Bank”) is an Albanian financial institution 
which was incorporated on 12 December 
2003 under the Albanian Commercial Law 
and was licensed by the Bank of Albania 
(“the Central Bank”) on 16 February 2004 
(Decision No. 17) to operate as a bank in 
all fields of banking activity in Albania in 
accordance with the Law No. 8365, “On 
the Banking System in Albania”, dated July 
1998. The Bank is also subject to Law No. 
8269, dated December 1997, “On the Bank 
of Albania”. The Bank started its activity on 
1 March 2004.

Based on a Share Purchase Agreement 
signed on 18 April 2007, Societe Generale 
purchased 75.01% of the shares of the Bank 
and increased its percentage to 88.64%.

In 21 August 2009 the Bank established a 
subsidiary “Sogelease Albania sh.a” under 
its full ownership. The Bank and Sogelease 
Albania Sh.a on 31 March 2013 merged 
to form a single institution named Banka 
Societe Generale Albania.

As at 31 December 2014, the Bank was 
operating through a head office located in 
Tirana and 42 branches (2013: 42 branches). 
The Bank operates in the geographical 
region of Albania only. As at 31 December 
2014 the Bank had 400 employees (31 
December 2013: 399 employees).

2. Adoption of new and revised 
international Financial reporting 
Standards (iFrSs)

2.1 Standards and interpretations 
effective in the current period

The following standards, amendments to 
the existing standards and interpretations 
issued by the International Accounting 
Standards Board are effective for the 
current period: 

n Amendments to IFRS 10 “Consolidated 
Financial Statements”, IFRS 12 “Disclosures 
of Interests in Other Entities” and IAS 27 
“Separate Financial Statements”  Investment 
Entities (effective for annual periods 
beginning on or after 1 January 2014),

n Amendments to IAS 32 “Financial 
instruments: presentation” Offsetting 
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities 
(effective for annual periods beginning on or 
after 1 January 2014),

n  Amendments to IAS 36 “Impairment of 
assets” – Recoverable Amount Disclosures 
for Non-Financial Assets (effective for 
annual periods beginning on or after 1 
January 2014),

n Amendments to IAS 39 “Financial 
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement” 
Novation of Derivatives and Continuation 
of Hedge Accounting (effective for annual 
periods beginning on or after 1 January 
2014),

n   IFRIC 21 “Levies” 
(effective for annual periods beginning on or 
after 1 January 2014).

The adoption of these amendments to 
the existing standards and interpretations 
has not led to any changes in the Banks’s 
accounting policies.
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2. Adoption of new and revised 
international Financial reporting 
Standards (Continued)

2.2. Standards and interpretations in 
issue not yet adopted
At the date of authorization of these 
financial statements, the following 
standards, revisions and interpretations 
were in issue but not yet adopted by the 
Bank:

n  IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”  (effective 
for annual periods beginning on or after 
1 January 2018) Standard uses a single 
approach to determine whether a financial 
asset is measured at amortised cost or fair 
value, replacing the many different rules in 
IAS 39. The approach in IFRS 9 is based 
on how an entity manages its financial 
instruments (its business model) and the 
contractual cash flow characteristics of 
the financial assets. The new standard also 
will require a single impairment method 
to be used, replacing the many different 
impairment methods in IAS 39. The new 
requirements on accounting for financial 
liabilities address the problem of volatility 
in profit or loss arising from an issuer 
choosing to measure its own debt at fair 
value. The IASB decided to maintain the 
existing amortised cost measurement 
for most liabilities, limiting change to 
that required to address the own credit 
problem. With the new requirements, an 
entity choosing to measure a liability at fair 
value will present the portion of the change 
in its fair value due to changes in the entity’s 
own credit risk in the other comprehensive 
income section of the income statement, 
rather than within profit or loss. The 
amendments from November 2013 bring 
into effect a substantial overhaul of hedge 
accounting that will allow entities to better 
reflect their risk management activities 
in the financial statements. It allows the 
changes to address the so-called ‘own 
credit’ issue that were already included in 
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments to be applied 
in isolation without the need to change any 

other accounting for financial instruments.
n IFRS 14 “Regulatory Deferral Accounts” 
(effective for annual periods beginning on or 
after 1 January 2016),

n  IFRS 15  “Revenue from Contracts with 
Customers” ”(effective for annual periods 
beginning on or after 1 January 2017),

n Amendments to IFRS 10 “Consolidated Financial 
Statements” and IAS 28 “Investments in Associates 
and Joint Ventures”  - Sale or Contribution of 
Assets between an Investor and its Associate 
or Joint Venture(effective for annual periods 
beginning on or after 1 January 2016),

n Amendments to IFRS 10“Consolidated 
Financial Statements”, IFRS 12 “Disclosure 
of Interests in Other Entities” and IAS 
28 “Investments in Associates and Joint 
Ventures”– Investment Entities: Applying the 
Consolidation Exception(effective for annual 
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016),

n Amendments to IFRS 11 “Joint 
Arrangements” - Accounting for Acquisitions 
of Interests in Joint Operations (effective 
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 
January 2016),

n Amendments to IAS 1 “Presentation of 
Financial Statements”  – Disclosure Initiative 
(effective for annual periods beginning on or 
after 1 January 2016),

n Amendments to IAS 16 “Property, Plant and 
Equipment” and IAS 38 “Intangible Assets”  
-Clarification of Acceptable Methods of 
Depreciation and Amortisation (effective 
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 
January 2016),

n Amendments to IAS 16 “Property, Plant 
and Equipment” and IAS 41 “Agriculture” 
– Agriculture: Bearer Plants(effective for 
annual periods beginning on or after 1 
January 2016),
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2. Adoption of new and revised 
international Financial reporting 
Standards (Continued)

2.2. Standards and interpretations in 
issue not yet adopted (Continued)

n Amendments to IAS 19 “Employee 
Benefits” - Defined Benefit Plans: Employee 
Contributions (effective for annual periods 
beginning on or after 1 July 2014),

n  Amendments to IAS 27 “Separate Financial 
Statements”  - Equity Method in Separate 
Financial Statements (effective for annual periods 
beginning on or after 1 January 2016),

n Amendments to various standards 
“Improvements to IFRSs (cycle 2010-2012)”  
resulting from the annual improvement 
project of IFRS (IFRS 2, IFRS 3, IFRS 8, IFRS 
13, IAS 16, IAS 24 and IAS 38) primarily with 
a view to removing inconsistencies and 
clarifying wording (amendments are to be 
applied for annual periods beginning on or 
after 1 July 2014),

n Amendments to various standards 
“Improvements to IFRSs (cycle 2011-2013)” 
resulting from the annual improvement 
project of IFRS (IFRS 1, IFRS 3, IFRS 13 and 
IAS 40) primarily with a view to removing 
inconsistencies and clarifying wording 
(amendments are to be applied for annual 
periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014),

n Amendments to various standards 
“Improvements to IFRSs (cycle 2012-2014)”  
resulting from the annual improvement 
project of IFRS (IFRS 5, IFRS 7, IAS 19 and 
IAS 34) primarily with a view to removing 
inconsistencies and clarifying wording 
(amendments are to be applied for annual 
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016). 
The Bank has elected not to adopt these 
standards, revisions and interpretations in 
advance of their effective dates. Except for 
the impact of IFRS 9, which will be assessed 

by the Bank during the coming years, 
the Bank anticipates that the adoption 
of the other standards, revisions and 
interpretations will have no material impact 
on the consolidated financial statements of 
the Bank in the period of initial application. 

3.  Significant accounting policies

(a) Statement of compliance
The financial statements of the Bank 
have been prepared in accordance with 
International Financial Reporting Standards 
(IFRSs). 

(b) Basis of preparation
These financial statements have been 
prepared on the historical cost basis except 
for the available-for-sale financial assets 
and assets acquired by adjudication which 
are measured at fair value.

(c) Functional and presentation currency
These financial statements are presented 
in Albanian Lek (“Lek”), which is the Bank’s 
functional currency. 

(d) Foreign currency transactions
Transactions in foreign currencies are 
translated to the functional currency 
at exchange rates at the dates of the 
transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities 
denominated in foreign currencies at the 
reporting date are retranslated to the 
functional currency at the exchange rate at 
that date. 

The foreign currency gain or loss on 
financial instruments held at amortized cost 
is the difference between amortised cost in 
the functional currency at the beginning of 
the period, adjusted for effective interest 
and payments during the period, and 
the amortised cost in foreign currency 
translated at the exchange rate at the end 
of the period. 

(e) Disclosure of information on operating 
segments The Bank is not required to apply 
IFRS 8 “Operating Segments” which has 
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superseded IAS 14 “Segment Reporting” 
starting from periods beginning on or after 
1 January 2009. The Bank has elected to 
disclose in its financial statements at note 29 
key information relating to its banking and 
leasing activities, which is not necessarily 
compliant with all the requirements of IFRS 
8. Therefore, the information disclosed in 
relation to these activities is not described as 
“Segment Information”.

(f) Interest
Interest income and expense are recognised 
in the Statement of profit or loss and other 
comprehensive income using the effective 
interest method. 

The effective interest rate is the rate that 
exactly discounts the estimated future cash 
payments and receipts through the expected 
life of the financial asset or liability (or, where 
appropriate, a shorter period) to the carrying 
amount of the financial asset or liability. The 
effective interest rate is established on initial 
recognition of the financial asset and liability 
and changes at each re-pricing date.

The calculation of the effective interest rate 
includes all fees paid or received, transaction 
costs, and discounts or premiums that are 
an integral part of the effective interest rate. 
Transaction costs are incremental costs that 
are directly attributable to the acquisition, 
issue or disposal of a financial asset or liability.

Interest income and expense presented in 
the Statement of profit or loss and other 
comprehensive income include interest 
recognised on financial assets and liabilities, 
held at amortised cost, calculated using the 
effective interest rate method.

(g) Fees and commission
Fees and commission income and expenses 
that are integral to the effective interest rate 
on a financial asset or liability are included 
in the measurement interest income or 
expenses calculated using the effective 
interest rate method.

Other fees and commission income, 
including account servicing fees, sales 
commission, placement fees, are 
recognised when the related services are 
performed. 

Other fees and commission expense related 
mainly to transaction and service fees, are 
expensed as the services are received.

(h) Operating lease payments 
Payments made under operating leases are 
recognised in Statement of profit or loss and 
other comprehensive income on a straight-
line basis over the term of the lease. Lease 
incentives received are recognised as an 
integral part of the total lease expense, over 
the term of the lease. 

(i) Operating expenses
The operating expenses are recognized 
when incurred.

(j) Defined contribution plans
Obligations for contributions to defined 
contribution pension plans are recognised 
as an expense in the Statement of profit 
or loss and other comprehensive income 
when they are due. The Bank makes only 
compulsory social security contributions 
that provide pension benefits for employees 
upon retirement. The local authorities are 
responsible for providing the legally set 
minimum threshold for pensions in Albania 
under a defined contribution pension plan.
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(k) Income tax expense
Income tax expense comprises current 
and deferred tax. Income tax expense is 
recognized in the Statement of profit or 
loss and other comprehensive income 
except to the extent that it relates to items 
recognized directly in equity, in which case it 
is recognized in equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on 
the taxable income for the year, using tax 
rates enacted or substantively enacted at 
the reporting date, and any adjustment to 
tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax is provided using the statement 
of financial position method, providing 
for temporary differences between the 
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for 
financial reporting purposes and their tax 
base. Deferred tax is measured at the tax 
rates that are expected to be applied to the 
temporary differences when they reverse, 
based on the laws that have been enacted 
or substantively enacted by the reporting 
date. Deferred tax liabilities are recognized 
for all taxable temporary differences.

A deferred tax asset is recognized only to the 
extent that it is probable that future taxable 
profits will be available against which the 
deductible temporary differences can be 
utilized. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at 
each reporting date and are reduced to the 
extent that it is no longer probable that the 
related tax benefit will be realized.

Additional income taxes that arise from the 
distribution of dividends are recognized 
at the same time as the liability to pay the 
related dividend is recognized.

(l) Financial assets and liabilities

(i) Recognition
The Bank initially recognizes loans 
and advances, and deposits, on the 
date that they are originated. All other 
financial assets and liabilities are initially 
recognized on the trade date at which the 
Bank becomes a party to the contractual 
provisions of the instrument.

(ii) Derecognition
The Bank derecognizes a financial asset 
when the contractual rights to the cash 
flows from the asset expire, or it transfers 
the rights to receive the contractual cash 
flows on the financial asset in a transaction 
in which substantially all the risks and 
rewards of ownership of the financial asset 
are transferred. Any interest in transferred 
financial assets that is created or retained by 
the Bank is recognized as a separate asset 
or liability.

The Bank derecognizes a financial liability 
when its contractual obligations are 
discharged or cancelled or expire.

The Bank enters into transactions whereby it 
transfers assets recognized on its statement 
of financial position, but retains either all 
risks or rewards of the transferred assets, or 
a portion of them.

If all or substantially all risks and rewards are 
retained, then the transferred assets are not 
derecognized from the statement of financial 
position. Transfers of assets with retention 
of all or substantially all risks and rewards 
include, for example, securities lending and 
repurchase transactions.  
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3.Significant accounting policies (continued)

(n) Financial assets and liabilities (continued)

(ii )Derecognition (continued)
When assets are sold to a third party 
with a concurrent total rate of return 
swap on the transferred assets, the 
transaction is accounted for as a secured 
financing transaction similar to repurchase 
transactions. 
In transactions where the Bank neither 
retains nor transfers substantially all the 
risks and rewards of ownership of a financial 
asset, it derecognizes the asset if control 
over the asset is lost.

The rights and obligations retained in the 
transfer are recognized separately as assets 
and liabilities as appropriate. In transfers 
where control over the asset is retained, 
the Bank continues to recognize the asset 
to the extent of its continuing involvement, 
determined by the extent to which it is 
exposed to changes in the value of the 
transferred asset.

The Bank also derecognizes certain assets 
when it writes off balances pertaining to the 
assets deemed to be uncollectible (note 4).

(iii) Offsetting
The Bank does not offset assets and 
liabilities or income and expenses, unless 
required or permitted by an IFRS. In 
addition, the Bank presents on a net basis 
gains and losses arising from a group of 
similar transactions, for example, foreign 
exchange gains and losses. However, 
the Bank presents such gains and losses 
separately if they are material.

(iv) Amortized cost measurement 
The amortised cost of a financial asset or 
liability is the amount at which the financial 
asset or liability is measured at initial 
recognition, minus principal repayments, 

plus or minus the cumulative amortization 
using the effective interest method of 
any difference between the initial amount 
recognised and the maturity amount, minus 
any reduction for impairment.

(v) Fair value measurement
The determination of fair values of financial 
assets and financial liabilities is based 
on quoted market prices or dealer price 
quotations for financial instruments traded 
in active markets. For all other financial 
instruments fair value is determined by 
using valuation techniques. Valuation 
techniques include net present value 
techniques, the discounted cash flow 
method, comparison to similar instruments 
for which market observable prices exist, 
and valuation models.

The Bank measures fair values using the 
following fair value hierarchy that reflects the 
significance of the inputs used in making the 
measurements:

Level 1: Quoted market price (unadjusted) in 
an active market for an identical instrument.

Level 2: Valuation techniques based on 
observable inputs, either directly (i.e., as 
prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived from prices). 

This category includes instruments valued 
using: quoted market prices in active 
markets for similar instruments; quoted 
prices for identical or similar instruments 
in markets that are considered less than 
active; or other valuation techniques where 
all significant inputs are directly or indirectly 
observable from market data.

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2014
(amounts in Lek‘000, unless otherwise stated)
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3. Significant accounting policies 
(continued)
(n) Financial assets and liabilities 
(continued)
(v) Fair value measurement (continued)

Level 3: Valuation techniques using 
significant unobservable inputs. This 
category includes all instruments where 
the valuation technique includes inputs 
not based on observable data and the 
unobservable inputs have a significant 
effect on the instrument's valuation. 
This category includes instruments that 
are valued based on quoted prices for 
similar instruments where significant 
unobservable adjustments or assumptions 
are required to reflect differences between 
the instruments.

The Bank uses widely recognised valuation 
models for determining the fair value of 
financial instruments. For these financial 
instruments, inputs into models are market 
observable. Valuation techniques include 
net present value and discounted cash flow 
models, comparison to similar instruments 
for which market observable prices exist, 
and valuation techniques based on a 
current yield curve appropriate for the 
remaining term to maturity. The objective 
of valuation techniques is to arrive at the 
determination of a fair value that reflects 
the price of the financial instrument at the 
reporting date, which would have been 
determined by market participants acting 
at arm's length.

(vi) Identification and measurement of 
impairment

At each reporting date the Bank assesses 
whether there is objective evidence that 
financial assets, other than those that are 
carried at fair value through profit or loss, 
are impaired. Financial assets are impaired 
when objective evidence demonstrates 

that a loss event has occurred after the 
initial recognition of the asset, and that the 
loss event has an impact on the future cash 
flows on the asset that can be estimated 
reliably. The Bank considers evidence of 
impairment at both a specific asset and 
collective level. All individually significant 
financial assets are assessed for specific 
impairment. All significant assets that are 
found not impaired from the individual 
assessment, are then collectively assessed 
for impairment by grouping together 
financial assets (carried at amortised cost) 
with similar risk characteristics. 

Objective evidence that financial assets 
are impaired can include default or 
delinquency by a borrower, restructuring of 
a loan or advance by the Bank on terms that 
the Bank would not otherwise consider, 
indications that a borrower or issuer will 
enter bankruptcy, the disappearance of 
an active market for a security, or other 
observable data relating to a group of 
assets such as adverse changes in the 
payment status of borrowers or issuers 
in the Bank, or economic conditions that 
correlate with defaults in the Bank.

In assessing collective impairment the 
Bank uses statistical modelling of historical 
trends of the probability of default, timing 
of recoveries and the amount of loss 
incurred. Default rates, loss rates and the 
expected timing of future recoveries are 
benchmarked against actual outcomes to 
ensure that they remain appropriate.

Impairment losses on assets carried 
at amortised cost are measured as the 
difference between the carrying amount of 
the financial assets and the present value 
of estimated cash flows discounted at 
the assets’ original effective interest rate. 
Losses are recognised in profit or loss and 
reflected in an allowance account against 
loans and advances. When a subsequent 

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2014
(amounts in Lek‘000, unless otherwise stated)



event causes the amount of impairment loss 
to decrease, the impairment loss is reversed 
through Statement of profit or loss and other 
comprehensive income.

During 2014 the bank has further refined the 
methodology of impairment staying within 
the above framework.

(q) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include notes 
and coins on hand, unrestricted balances 
held with central banks and highly liquid 
financial assets with original maturities of 
less than three months, which are subject 
to insignificant risk of changes in their fair 
value, and are used by the Bank in the 
management of its short-term commitments. 

(r) Loans and advances
Loans and advances are non-derivative 
financial assets with fixed or determinable 
payments that are not quoted in an active 
market and that the Bank does not intend to 
sell immediately or in the near term.

When the Bank purchases a financial asset 
and simultaneously enters into an agreement 
to resell the asset (or a substantially 
similar asset) at a fixed price on a future 
date (“reverse repo”), the arrangement is 
accounted for as a loan or advance, and 
the underlying asset is not recognised in the 
Bank’s financial statements.

Loans and advances are initially recognised 
at fair value plus incremental direct 
transaction costs, and subsequently 
measured at their amortised cost using the 
effective interest method.

(q) Investment securities
Investment securities are initially measured at 
fair value plus incremental direct transaction 
costs and subsequently accounted for 
depending on their classification as either 
held-to-maturity, or available-for-sale.

(i) Held-to-maturity
Held-to-maturity investments are assets with 
fixed or determinable payments and fixed 
maturity that the Bank has the positive intent 
and ability to hold to maturity, and which are 
not designated at fair value through profit or 
loss or available-for-sale. Held-to-maturity 
investments are carried at amortised cost 
using the effective interest method. 

Any sale or reclassification of a significant 
amount of held-to-maturity investments 
not close to their maturity would result in 
the reclassification of all held-to-maturity 
investments as available-for-sale, and 
prevent the Bank from classifying investment 
securities as held-to-maturity for the current 
and the following two financial years.

(ii) Available-for-sale
Available-for-sale investments are non-
derivative investments that are not designated 
as another category of financial assets.

All available-for-sale investments are carried 
at fair value. 

Interest income is recognised in profit or loss 
using the effective interest method. Foreign 
exchange gains or losses on available-
for-sale debt security investments are 
recognised in Statement of profit or loss and 
other comprehensive income.

A gain or loss on an available-for-sale 
financial asset shall be recognised in 
other comprehensive income, except for 
impairment losses and foreign exchange 
gains and losses, until the financial asset is 
derecognised. At that time the cumulative 
gain or loss previously recognised in 
other comprehensive income shall be 
reclassified from equity to profit or 
loss as a reclassification adjustment. 
However, interest calculated using the 
effective interest method is recognised 
in Statement of profit or loss and other 
comprehensive income.
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(r) Property and equipment

(i) Recognition and measurement
Items of property and equipment are 
measured at cost less accumulated 
depreciation and impairment losses.

(ii) subsequent costs
The cost of replacing part of an item of 
property or equipment is recognised in the 
carrying amount of the item if it is probable 
that the future economic benefits embodied 
within the part will flow to the Bank and its 
cost can be measured reliably. The costs 
of the day-to-day servicing of property and 
equipment are recognised in Statement 
of profit or loss and other comprehensive 
income as incurred.
 
(iii) Depreciation
Depreciation is recognised in Statement 
of profit or loss and other comprehensive 
income on a straight-line basis over the 
estimated useful lives of each part of an item 
of property and equipment. Improvements 
to leased assets are depreciated over the 
shorter of the lease term and their useful 
lives.

The estimated useful lives for the current and 
comparative periods are as follows:
            (in years)
•  Builduings   30
•  Computers and IT equipment 5
•  Installations and various equipment 5
•  Office furniture   10
•  Motor vehicles   5
•  Leasehold improvements                  5

Depreciation methods, useful lives and 
residual values are reassessed at the 
reporting date. Depreciation is not provided 
on construction-in-progress. 

(s) intangible assets
Software acquired by the Bank is stated 
at cost less accumulated amortisation and 
accumulated impairment losses. 
Subsequent expenditure on software assets 

is capitalised only when it increases the 
future economic benefits embodied in the 
specific asset to which it relates. All other 
expenditure is expensed as incurred.

Amortisation is recognised in the statement 
of profit or loss and other comprehensive 
income on a straight-line basis over the 
estimated useful life of the software, from 
the date that it is available for use. The 
estimate useful life of software is ten years.

(t) Non-current assets held for sale
Non-current assets are classified as held for 
sale if the carrying amount will be recovered 
principally through a sale transaction rather 
than through continuing use. They are 
initially recognized with the lower of their 
carrying amount if they were not classified 
previously as held for sale, and the fair value 
less cost to sell. Non-current assets held 
for sale are measured at the lower of their 
carrying amount and fair value less costs to 
sell.

(u) Impairment of non-financial assets
The carrying amounts of the Bank’s non-
financial assets, other than deferred tax 
assets, are reviewed at each reporting 
date to determine whether there is 
any indication of impairment. If any 
such indication exists then the asset’s 
recoverable amount is estimated. 

An impairment loss is recognised if the 
carrying amount of an asset or its cash-
generating unit exceeds its recoverable 
amount. A cash-generating unit is the 
smallest identifiable asset group that 
generates cash flows that largely are 
independent from other assets and 
groups. Impairment losses are recognised 
in Statement of profit or loss and other 
comprehensive income. 

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-
generating unit is the greater of its value in 
use and its fair value less costs to sell.

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2014
(amounts in Lek‘000, unless otherwise stated)
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4. USE OF ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS

In assessing value in use, the estimated 
future cash flows are discounted to their 
present value using a pre-tax discount rate 
that reflects current market assessments 
of the time value of money and the risks 
specific to the asset. 

Impairment losses recognised in prior periods 
are assessed at each reporting date for any 
indications that the loss has decreased or no 
longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed 
if there has been a change in the estimates 
used to determine the recoverable amount. 
An impairment loss is reversed only to the 
extent that the asset’s carrying amount does 
not exceed the carrying amount that would 
have been determined, net of depreciation 
or amortisation, if no impairment loss had 
been recognised.

(v) Deposits and other financial liabilities 
Deposits and other financial liabilities are 
part of the Bank’s sources of debt funding. 

When the Bank sells a financial asset 
and simultaneously enters into a “repo” 
agreement to repurchase the asset (or a 
similar asset) at a fixed price on a future 
date, the arrangement is accounted for 
as a deposit, and the underlying asset 
continues to be recognised in the Bank’s 
financial statements.

The Bank classifies capital instruments as 
financial liabilities or equity instruments 
in accordance with the substance of the 
contractual terms of the instrument. 

Deposits and other financial liabilities 
are initially measured at fair value plus 
transaction costs, and subsequently 
measured at their amortised cost using the 
effective interest method.

(w) Provisions
A provision is recognised if, as a result 
of a past event, the Bank has a present 
legal or constructive obligation that can be 

estimated reliably, and it is probable that an 
outflow of economic benefits will be required 
to settle the obligation. 

Provisions are determined by discounting 
the expected future cash flows at a pre-
tax rate that reflects current market 
assessments of the time value of money 
and, where appropriate, the risks specific to 
the liability.

(x) Reclassification of current balances
The bank has made the following 
reclassifications in the comparative balances 
for 2013:
- In line “Property and Equipment Net” a 
land for a value of 168,523 thousand Lek, 
was reclassified in the line “Assets Acquired 
by Adjudication”, representing more fairly 
the substance of the transaction.
- In the line “Other Assets” the value of Bailiff 
Fees for a value of 133,267 thousand Lek 
was added to the line “Loans to Customers 
Net”, representing more fairly the substance 
of such prepaid costs
- In the line “Other Assets” the value of “ 
Prepaid Tax” for 60,094 thousand Lek was 
netted with “Tax Payables” in the line of “ 
Other Liabilities”, representing more fairly 
the substance of the transaction.
- Loans and Advances to Customers, have 
been presented separately in the following 
categories: Loans to Customers Net and 
Finance Lease Receivables

4. Use of estimates and judgments

Management discussed with the Board of 
Directors the development, selection and 
disclosure of the Bank’s critical accounting 
policies and estimates, and the application 
of these policies and estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions 
are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions 
to accounting estimates are recognised in 
the period in which the estimate is revised 

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2014
(amounts in Lek‘000, unless otherwise stated)
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if the revision affects only that period or 
in the period of the revision and future 
periods if the revision affects both current 
and future periods. These disclosures 
supplement the commentary on financial 
risk management (see note 29).

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

Allowances for credit losses
When assessing financial assets individually 
for impairment the management has to 
make estimates of the present value of 
the cash flows that are expected to be 
received. In estimating these cash flows, 
management makes judgements about the 
counterparty’s financial situation and the net 
realisable value of any underlying collateral. 
Each impaired asset is assessed on its 
merits, the workout strategy and estimate 
of cash flows considered recoverable are 
independently estimated by the Credit Risk 
function. Collectively assessed impairment 
allowances cover credit losses inherent in 
portfolios of financial assets with similar 
economic characteristics when there is 
objective evidence to suggest that they 
contain impaired exposures that can not be 
identified individually yet.
 
In assessing the need for collective loan 
loss allowances, management considers 
factors such as credit quality, portfolio size, 
concentrations, and economic factors. In 
order to estimate the required allowance, 
assumptions are made to define the 
way inherent losses are modelled and to 
determine the required input parameters, 
based on historical experience and current 
economic conditions. The accuracy of 
the allowances depends on the  accuracy 
of  the estimated future cash flows for 
specific counterparty allowances and the 
model assumptions and parameters used in 
determining collective allowances. 

Assets acquired by adjudication

For these category of assets, external 
evaluations are performed on annual basis. 
Through the years the bank has created a 
complete database of approximately three 
evaluations for each asset. The fair value of 
such assets is determined, considering the 
lowest evaluation of the evaluations existing 
for a specific assets. 

Disclosure of fair value

Loans and advances to banks and financial 
institutions
Loans and advances to banks include 
inter-bank placements. Their fair value is 
considered to approximate their carrying 
amount due to either their short-term 
nature or underlying interest rates, which 
approximate market rates.
 
Loans and advances to customers
Loans and advances are presented net 
of allowances for impairment. The Bank’s 
loan portfolio has an estimated fair value 
approximately equal to its book value due 
to the floating nature of interest rates, with 
loans being repriced within one year cycle, 
with the exception of a bucket of loans 
granted in 2008 which were granted without 
a minimum floor applicable. 

Due to other banks and customers
Fair value of term deposits approximates 
the carrying amount due to their short 
term maturity nature, with concentration of 
deposits being within the [0:1 Year ] bucket.

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2014
(amounts in Lek‘000, unless otherwise stated)
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2014
(amounts in Lek‘000, unless otherwise stated)

31-Dec-14 31-Dec-13

Financial Assets and Liabilities Carrying Amount Fair Value Carrying Amount Fair Value

Financial Assets     

Cash and cash equivalents          2,988,764 2,988,764 5,580,455 5,580,455

Restricted balances with Central 
Bank

         5,756,788 5,756,788 5,474,472 5,474,472

Loans and advances to banks          1,187,751 1,187,751 1,645,248 1,645,248

Investment securities        20,514,693 20,514,693 17,536,082 17,536,082

Loans and advances to customers        38,539,789 38,439,929 37,248,788 37,144,660

Financial Leasing Contracts             516,052 516,052 488,294 488,294

Total Financial Assets        69,503,836 69,403,977 67,973,339 67,869,211

Financial Liabilities

Loans and advances from 
financial institutions

4,026,273 4,026,273 4,996,978 4,996,978

Due to customers 58,899,592 58,899,592 56,688,822 56,688,822

Total Financial Liabilities 62,925,865 62,925,865 61,685,800 61,685,800

The following table summarizes the fair value of financial instruments according to 
their classification in the statement of financial position
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DIsClosUre oF FAIr vAlUe (ContInUeD)

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2014
(amounts in Lek‘000, unless otherwise stated)

Statement of Financial 
Position

31 dhjetor 2014 Fair Value 31 dhjetor 2013 Fair Value

Assets Carrying 
Amount

Amortized 
Cost

Level 
1

Level
2

Level
3

Carrying 
Amount

Amortized 
Cost

Level
1

Level 
2

Level
3

Cash and cash 
equivalents

2,988,764 2,988,764 5,580,455 5,580,455

Restricted balances 
with Central Bank 5,756,788 5,756,788 5,474,472 5,474,472

Loans and advances 
to banks

1,187,751 1,187,751 1,645,248 1,645,248

Investment securities 20,514,693 20,514,693 17,536,082 17,536,082

Loans and advances 
to customers

38,539,789 38,539,789 37,248,788 37,248,788

Financial Leasing 
Contracts

516,052 516,052 488,294 488,294

Property and 
equipment

594,027 594,027 648,385 648,385

Intangible assets 223,666 223,666 257,666 257,666

Assets acquired by 
adjudication

901,994 901,994 880,156 880,156

Other assets 303,744 303,744 159,103 159,103

Total assets 71,527,268 50,110,581 - 20,514,693 901,994 69,918,648 51,502,411 - 17,536,082 880,156

Liabilities

Loans and advances 
from financial 
institutions

4,026,273 4,026,273 4,996,978 4,996,978

Due to customers 58,899,592 58,899,592 56,688,822 56,688,822

Other liabilities 407,987 407,987 357,988 357,988

Income tax to be 
paid

10,486 10,486

63,344,338 63,344,338 62,043,788 62,043,788

Shareholders’ equity

Paid-up capital 6,740,900 6,740,900 6,740,900 6,740,900

Share premium 1,750 1,750 1,750 1,750

Legal reserve 4,618 4,618 4,618 4,618

Fair value reserve 
for available-for-sale 
securities

50,889 50,889 219,819 219,819

Retained earnings / 
(Accumulated losses)

1,384,774 1,384,774 907,774 907,774

8,182,930 8,132,042 7,874,860 7,655,042

Total liabilities and 
shareholder’s equity

71,527,268 71,476,380 - 50,889 69,918,648 69,698,829 - 219,819 -

As at 31 December 2014 and 2013 all financial instruments are measured at amortized 
cost, except for investment in securities which are measure at fair value. Fair values as at 
31 December 2014 and 2013 for investment securities have been measured based on Level 
2 hierarchy. For assets acquired through adjudication, the fair value has been determined 
based on Level 3 hierarchy
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5. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents as at 31 December 2014 and 2013 are detailed as follows:

The annual interest rates applied for term deposits with resident banks for the year ended 31 
December 2014 range from 0.75% to 3.09% (2013: 1.75% to 4.20%) and for term deposits 
with non-resident banks from 0.01% to 0.55% (2013: 0.01% to 0.41%). 

AUDITOR’S
REPORT 5. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

31 December 2014 31 December 2013

Cash on hand

In Lek            518,329 462,503

In foreign currencies            327,458 419,666

Current accounts with Central Bank              15,587 262

Current accounts with other banks         1,431,034 66,140

Money market placements            696,356 4,631,884

Total         2,988,764 5,580,455

31 
December 

2014

31 
December 

2013

Austri 425,824 14,909

France 388,876 43,672

Albania 583 364

Germany 604,844 3,990

Switzerland 9,445 3,205

Great Britain 1,462 -

Total 1,431,034 66,140

31 
December 

2014

31 
December 

2013

Italy 191,852 484,121

Albania 504,504 300,026

France - 2,746,728

Belgium - 546,782

Austria - 554,227

Total 696,356 4,631,884

Current accounts with other banks as at 
31 December 2014 and 2013 are detailed 
geographically as follows:

Money market placements as at 31 
December 2014 and 2013 are detailed 
geographically as follows and maturities 
vary from 5 – 8 days:

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2014
(amounts in Lek‘000, unless otherwise stated)

Statement of Financial 
Position

31 dhjetor 2014 Fair Value 31 dhjetor 2013 Fair Value

Assets Carrying 
Amount

Amortized 
Cost

Level 
1

Level
2

Level
3

Carrying 
Amount

Amortized 
Cost

Level
1

Level 
2

Level
3

Cash and cash 
equivalents

2,988,764 2,988,764 5,580,455 5,580,455

Restricted balances 
with Central Bank 5,756,788 5,756,788 5,474,472 5,474,472

Loans and advances 
to banks

1,187,751 1,187,751 1,645,248 1,645,248

Investment securities 20,514,693 20,514,693 17,536,082 17,536,082

Loans and advances 
to customers

38,539,789 38,539,789 37,248,788 37,248,788

Financial Leasing 
Contracts

516,052 516,052 488,294 488,294

Property and 
equipment

594,027 594,027 648,385 648,385

Intangible assets 223,666 223,666 257,666 257,666

Assets acquired by 
adjudication

901,994 901,994 880,156 880,156

Other assets 303,744 303,744 159,103 159,103

Total assets 71,527,268 50,110,581 - 20,514,693 901,994 69,918,648 51,502,411 - 17,536,082 880,156

Liabilities

Loans and advances 
from financial 
institutions

4,026,273 4,026,273 4,996,978 4,996,978

Due to customers 58,899,592 58,899,592 56,688,822 56,688,822

Other liabilities 407,987 407,987 357,988 357,988

Income tax to be 
paid

10,486 10,486

63,344,338 63,344,338 62,043,788 62,043,788

Shareholders’ equity

Paid-up capital 6,740,900 6,740,900 6,740,900 6,740,900

Share premium 1,750 1,750 1,750 1,750

Legal reserve 4,618 4,618 4,618 4,618

Fair value reserve 
for available-for-sale 
securities

50,889 50,889 219,819 219,819

Retained earnings / 
(Accumulated losses)

1,384,774 1,384,774 907,774 907,774

8,182,930 8,132,042 7,874,860 7,655,042

Total liabilities and 
shareholder’s equity

71,527,268 71,476,380 - 50,889 69,918,648 69,698,829 - 219,819 -
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6. RESTRICTED BALANCES wITH CENTRAL BANK 
7. LOANS AND ADVANCES TO FINANCIAL 
INSTITUTIONS

6. restricted balances with Central Bank 

In accordance with the Central Bank’s requirements relating to the deposit reserve, the    
Bank should maintain as statutory reserve at the Central Bank a restricted balance, which    
should not be lower than 10% of customer deposits of the Bank. 
 
 Interest on statutory reserve in the Central Bank is calculated as follows:
 
- LEK: 70% of the repurchase agreements rate: 1.58% p.a. as of 31 December 2014 (31     
  December 2013: 2.1% p.a.);
- USD: 0% as of 31 December 2014 (31 December 2013: 0.00% p.a.);
- EUR: 0% as of 31 December 2014 (31 December 2013: 0.00% p.a.). 

7. Loans and advances to financial institutions

Loans and advances to financial institutions as at 31 December 2014 and 2013 are 
detailed as follows:

31 December 2014 31 December 2013

Loans to financial institution 1,060,998 1,543,388 

Escrow accounts for bank guarantees 126,753 101,860

Total 1,187,751 1,645,248

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2014
(amounts in Lek‘000, unless otherwise stated)
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8. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS
8.1 TREASURY BILLS

8. Available-for-sale investments

 Available-for-sale investments as at 31 December 2014 and 2013 are detailed as follows:
 

31 December 2014 31 December 2013

Treasury bills (8.1) 3,886,376 5,272,222

Government bonds (8.2) 16,628,316 12,263,860

Total 20,514,693 17,536,082

8.1 Treasury bills

Treasury bills by contractual maturity are detailed as follows:

31 December 2014

Maturity Market value Accrued interest Carrying value

3 months 882,817 1,173 883,990 

6 months                           -                                   -                          -   

12 months 2,953,408 48,978 3,002,386 

3,836,225 50,151 3,886,376 

31 December 2013

Maturity Market value Accrued interest Carrying value

3 months - - -

6 months - - -

12 months 5,102,407 169,815 5,272,222

5,102,407 169,815 5,272,222

The effective yield on treasury bills as at 31 December 2014 range from 2.85% to 3.78% 
(31 December 2013: from 3.67% to 6.69%).

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2014
(amounts in Lek‘000, unless otherwise stated)
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REPORT 8.2 GOVERNMENT BONDS

8.2 Government bonds

Government bonds by maturity are detailed as follows:

The interest of Government bonds is received semi-annually at a coupon rate as at 31 
December 2014 ranging from 4.69% to 9.25% (31 December 2013: from 4.69% to 9.25%). 

In November 2010, the Bank has participated in the Eurobond issuance of Euro 15,000 
thousand with an annual interest rate of 7.5%. During 2013 the Bank invested in Government 
Bonds issuance of 4,700 thousand with an annual interest rate of 4.65%. 

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2014
(amounts in Lek‘000, unless otherwise stated)

31 December 
2014

Maturity Purchase price Market value Accrued 
interest Carrying value

G. Bonds 24 months 4,130,899 4,133,298 53,239 4,186,537

G. Bonds 36 months 1,044,551 1,045,253 27,551 1,072,803

G. Bonds 60 months 5,691,392 5,718,262 87,267 5,805,529

G. Bonds 84 months 1,000,000 997,976 20,667 1,018,643

G. Bonds 120 months 1,681,905 1,699,911 60,883 1,760,793

Euro Bond 2,091,505 2,100,313 24,620 2,124,933

G. Bonds 24 months EUR 658,658 658,658 420 659,078

16,298,912 16,353,670 274,646 16,628,316

31 December 
2013

Maturity Purchase price Market value Accrued 
interest Carrying value

G. Bonds 24 months 4,735,576 4,802,300 80,507 4,882,807

G. Bonds 36 months 729,505 736,989 22,041 759,030

G. Bonds 60 months 3,401,392 3,511,084 42,103 3,553,187

G. Bonds 120 months 281,905 283,520 2,271 285,791

Euro Bond 2,092,401 2,099,054 24,631 2,123,685

G. Bonds 24 months EUR 658,940 658,940 420 659,360

11,899,720 12,091,887 171,973 12,263,860
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9. Loans and advances to customers, net

9.1  Loans to customers net

 Loans to customers, net as at 31 December 2014 and 2013 are detailed as follows:
 

31 December 2014 31 December 2013

Private entrepreneurs and enterprises        28,663,153  26,597,515

Individuals         11,297,430 11,593,104

Accrued interest              146,837 169,192

        40,107,420 38,359,811

Less allowance for impairment (1,567,631) (1,111,023)

Total 38,539,789 37,248,788

31 December 2014 31 December 2013

Term Loans 27,189,214 25,966,546 

Overdrafts 12,918,206 12,393,265 

Total 40,107,420 38,359,811 

Movements in the allowance for impairment for the year ended 31 December 2014 and 
2013 is presented as follows:

31 December 2014 31 December 2013

Balance at the beginning of the year           1,111,023              871,853 

Allowance for impairment of loan losses              471,277              386,959 

Loans and advances written-off               (44,749)             (154,884)

Forex impact                 30,080                   7,095 

Balance at the end of the year           1,567,631           1,111,023 

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Bank has written off 96 loans (2013: 180 
loans) for an amount of Lek 44,749 thousand (2013: Lek 154,884 thousand).

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2014
(amounts in Lek‘000, unless otherwise stated)
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REPORT 9.2 FINANCIAL LEASES RECEIVABLE NET

9.2.  Financial Leases receivable Net 

Gross investment in financial leases, receivable
 

31 December 2014 31 December 2013

  - Less than one year 39,604 38,410

  - Between one and five years 564,604 525,575

  - More than five years 28,292 -

632,500 563,985

Less unearned finance income (72,932) (71,091)

Net Investments in Financial Leases 559,567 492,894

Less impairment allowance (43,515) (4,600)

Total 516,052 488,294

Movements in the allowance for impairment related to financial leases contracts for the year 
ended 31 December 2014 and 2013 is presented as follows:

Allowance for impairment 31 December 2014 31 December 2013

At the beginning of the period 4,600 -

Allowance for loan loss impairment 38,915 4,600

At the end of period 43,515 4,600

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2014
(amounts in Lek‘000, unless otherwise stated)
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Buildings
Computers 

and iT 
equipment

Furniture 
and office 

equipment

Motor 
vehicles Leasehold 

improvements
Construction 

in progress Total

Cost

At 31 December 2013 387,078 479,621 449,185 32,124 291,145 60,158 1,699,312

Additions - 14,209 6,161 - 4,951 50,206 75,527

Disposals - (25,295) (3,842) - - - (29,137)

Sale - - - - - (14,784) (14,784)

Transfers - (170) 170 - - (11,359) (11,359)

At 31 December 2014 387,078 468,365 451,674 32,124 296,096 84,221 1,719,559

Accumulated depreciation

At 31 December 2013 (45,137) (404,104) (339,961) (21,755) (239,969) - 1,050,926

Charge for the year (13,440) (34,736) (31,950) (4,178) (18,549) - (102,853)

Disposals - 25,235 3,012 - - - 28,247

Transfers - - - - - - -

At 31 December 2014 (58,577) (413,605) (368,899) (25,933) (258,518) - (1,125,532)

Net carrying value        

At 31 December 2013 341,941 75,516 109,224 10,368 51,177 60,158 648,385

At 31 December 2014 328,501 54,760 82,775 6,191 37,578 84,221 594,027

10. Property and equipment, net

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2014
(amounts in Lek‘000, unless otherwise stated)
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11. IntAnGIble Assets, net
12. ASSETS ACQUIRED THROUGH ADJUDICATION

11. intangible assets, net

Software

Cost

At 1 January 2013 383,442

Additions 35,138

Transfers 22,311

Disposals -

At 31 December 2013 440,891

Additions 3,659

Transfers 11,359

Disposals -

At 31 December 2014 455,909

Accumulated amortization

At 1 January 2013 (132,619)

Charge for the year (50,606)

Disposals

At 31 December 2014 (183,225)

Shpenzimi i vitit (49,018)

Net carrying value (232,243)

Vlera e mbetur neto

At 31 December 2013 257,666

At 31 December 2014 223,666

12. Assets acquired through adjudication

As at 31 December 2014 non-current assets acquired through adjudication of Lek 901,994 
thousand (31 December 2013: Lek 880,156 thousand) represent assets taken in property 
from the execution of non-performing loans collaterals. The above values represent the 
lowest of the carrying amount as of December 31st and of their fair value less cost to sell. 

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2014
(amounts in Lek‘000, unless otherwise stated)
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13. Other assets

Other assets as at 31 December 2014 and 2013 are detailed as follows:
 

31 December 2014 31 December 2013

Debtors                235,536 104,902

Prepayments 32,055                 29,070

Inventory                  20,235 17,911

Clearing accounts                  15,918 7,221

Total                303,744 159,104

14. Due to financial institutions
Due to financial institutions as at 31 December 2014 and 2013 are detailed as follows:

31 December 2014 31 December 2013

Term deposits 1,746,259 2,189,397

Current accounts 209,440 699,639

Repurchase agreement with Central 
Bank

- 1,614,578

Borrowings from banks 2,070,575 493,364

Total 4,026,273 4,996,978

Term deposits and current accounts relate to balances with financial institutions, mainly 
insurance companies which are required to maintain guarantee funds with commercial 
banks.  Term deposits as at 31 December 2014 bear an interest rate ranging from 1.3% to 
4.0% p.a. (31 December 2013: from 2.9% to 6.6% p.a.) for Lek, from 0.65% to 4.2% p.a. 
(31 December 2013: from 1.85% to 4.20% p.a.) for Euro and from 0.7% to 0.75% (2013: 
2.05% to 2.55%) in USD.

Borrowings from banks as at 31 December 2014 represent a 5 – 7 days maturity borrowing 
in Lek, Euro and USD from local banks.

The Bank had no repurchase agreement with Central Bank as at 31 December 2014 while 
in 2013 the level of repurchase agreements was LEK 1,614,578 bearing an interest of 3%. 
 

AUDITOR’S
REPORT

13. OTHER ASSETS
14. DUE TO FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2014
(amounts in Lek‘000, unless otherwise stated)



AUDITOR’S
REPORT 15. DUE TO CUSTOMERS

31 December 2014 31 December 2013

Local 
currency

Foreign 
currency Total Local 

currency
Foreign 

currency Total

Current accounts

Individuals 1,490,317 1,938,888 3,429,205 1,170,744 1,121,894 2,292,638

Private enterprises 1,593,637 1,571,266 3,164,904 922,413 1,417,134 2,339,547

Public enterprises 671,490 36,590 708,079 200,903 17,846 218,749

Public administration

3,755,444 3,546,744 7,302,188 2,294,060 2,556,874 4,850,935

Savings accounts

Individuals 1,286,458 1,875,113 3,161,571 966,253    1,147,108 2,113,361

Private enterprises 390,227 447,917 838,144 217,049 199,549 416,598

1,676,685 2,323,030 3,999,715 1,183,303 1,346,657 2,529,960

Term deposits

Individuals 21,514,568 22,563,417 44,077,985 20,662,208 23,738,705 44,400,914

Private enterprises 1,683,494 1,257,302 2,940,795 1,855,151 2,178,889 4,034,040

Public enterprises - - - 40,566 - 40,566

23,198,061 23,820,719 47,018,780 22,557,925 25,917,594 48,475,520

Other accounts

Individuals 431 17 448 651 17 668

Private enterprises 12,861 1,540 14,401 13,133 1,616 14,749

Public enterprises 34 0 34 34 - 34

13,326 1,557 14,883 13,817 1,634 15,451

Accrued interest 355,313 208,714 564,026 483,693 333,264 816,957

Total 28,998,829 29,900,763 58,899,592 26,532,799 30,156,023 56,688,822

15. Due to customers

Due to customers as at 31 December 2014 and 2013 are detailed as follows:

Current accounts bear an interest rate of 0.01% p.a. while saving accounts bear an interest rate of 0.1% to 0.3%  p.a. 
Term deposits as at 31 December 2014 bear an interest ranging from 0.15% to 8.00% p.a. (31 December 2013: from 
0.9% to 8.00% p.a.) for Lek, and from 0.1% to 5.0% ( 31 December 2013: from 0.2% to 5.0%) for foreign currencies. 
Other customer accounts represent guarantee accounts of Lek 14,883 thousand (2013: Lek 15,451 thousand) which as 
at 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2013, bear no interest.

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2014
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15. Due to customers as at 31 December 2014 and 2013 are detailed as follows: 
(continued)

AUDITOR’S
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31 December 2014 31 December 2013

One month:

Foreign currency        1,421,662 1,878,631

Local currency        1,569,228 1,722,641

       2,990,890 3,601,272

Three months:

Foreign currency        1,082,966 1,799,296

Local currency           993,278 1,179,260

       2,076,244 2,978,557

Six months:

Foreign currency        2,243,428 2,721,569

Local currency        2,611,184 2,709,490

       4,854,612 5,431,059

Twelve months:

Foreign currency      16,312,787 17,035,704

Local currency      15,328,840 14,424,794

     31,641,627 31,460,498

Twenty four months:

Foreign currency        1,608,192 1,546,774

Local currency        1,991,488 1,958,589

       3,599,680 3,505,363

Thirty six months

Foreign currency         1,151,684 935,621

Local currency           704,044 563,151

       1,855,728 1,498,771

Total 47,018,780 48,475,520

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2014
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16. Other liabilities

Other liabilities as at 31 December 2014 and 2013 are detailed as follows:

31 December 2014 31 December 2013

Accrued payables 153,415 131,192

Clearing accounts 95,502 76,532

Taxes payable other than income tax 12,428 16,630

Unearned income 4,052 4,052

Income tax to be paid 10,486 0

Other provisioning 15,022 100,750

Other creditors 127,567 28,832

Total 418,473 357,988

Accrued payables as at 31 December 2014 include balances payable for utilities, 
stationeries, insurance and other similar expenses.  

17. Paid-up capital

The paid-up capital represents the fully paid shares subscribed by the Bank’s shareholders.

As at 31 December 2014 to Lek 6,740,900 thousand (31 December 2013: Lek 6,740,900).

31 December 2014 31 December 2013

Number of Shares (%) Numri i aksioneve (%)

Societe Generale 59,753 88.64 59,753 88.64

Mr. Vasil Naçi 2,798 4.15 2,798 4.15

Mr. Kosta Sotiri 1,439 2.13 1,439 2.13

Mr. Kristo Naçi 1,603 2.38 1,603 2.38

Mr. Behar Male 449 0.67 449 0.67

Mr. Guxim Resuli 607 0.90 607 0.90

Mr. Lefter Sota 298 0.44 298 0.44

Mr. Vladimir Kosta 296 0.44 296 0.44

Mr. Adrian Doçi 166 0.25 166 0.25

Total 67,409 100 67,409 100

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2014
(amounts in Lek‘000, unless otherwise stated)
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18. interest income

Interest income was earned on the following assets:

Year ended 
31 December 2014

Year ended 
31 December 2013

Loans to customers                 2,481,257                 2,714,312 

Financial leases contracts                      46,875                      47,726 

Investments and repurchase agreements                 1,313,232                 1,169,521 

Loans and advances to financial institutions                    137,673                    189,177 

Total                 3,797,037                 4,120,736 
  
 
19. Interest expense

Interest expense for the year ended 31 December 2014 and 2013 was incurred on the 
following:

Year ended 
31 December 2014

Year ended 
31 December 2013

Due to customers 1,274,512 1,754,478

Due to banks and financial institutions 79,380 96,450

Total 1,353,892 1,850,928

20. Fee and Commission income 

Year ended 
31 December 2014

Year ended 
31 December 2013

Banking services 343,507 350,200

Other                      20,635 16,392

Totali                    364,142 366,593
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21. Fee and Commission expenses

Year ended 
31 December 2014

Year ended 
31 December 2013

Interbank transactions 7,234 7,906

Forex & arbitrage operations 4,057 7,797

Master Card and Visa Activity 41,999 31,919

Other 2,531 1,909

Total                    55,820 49,531
  
 
22. Personnel expenses

Year ended 
31 December 2014

Year ended 
31 December 2013

Salaries                    497,802 480,128

Social insurance                      62,878 58,134

Bonuses and rewards                    105,669 100,944

Total                    666,350 639,206

AUDITOR’S
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23. ADMiNiSTrATiVE ExPENSES

Year ended 
31 December 2014

Year ended 
31 December 2013

Rent expenses 208,923 212,468

Communication and electricity 107,453 108,970

Technical assistance from mother company 35,640 85,123

External services 181,377 174,765

Advertising and promotions 75,529 84,929

Deposits and other insurance expenses 73,461 71,207

Stationery and printings 28,820 22,434

Maintenance and repairs 61,541 57,939

Travel and transportation 23,756 27,251

Training expenses 16,926 18,552

Legal expenses 19,396 29,468

Taxes other than income tax 9,800 8,797

External audit expenses 4,877 6,197

Board of Directors and Audit Committee 7,659 9,988

Other expenses 12,592 27,416

Total 867,752 945,504

External services represent expenses for security, other utilities and professional services.

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2014
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24. Income tax expense

Year ended 
31 December 2014

Year ended 
31 December 2013

Current income tax 102,553 60,093

Deferred (income) tax/ expense - -

Total 102,553 60,093

Income tax in Albania is assessed at the rate of 15% by the end of 2014 (2013: 10%) of 
taxable income. Starting from January 1, 2014 according to income tax law amendment 
dated December 28, 2013 the provision calculated based on International Financial 
Reporting Standards are applied for the calculation of the income tax. Due to the change 
of the income tax law there are no temporary differences between the carrying amounts 
of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for 
taxation purposes.

The following represents a reconciliation of the profit before tax to the taxable results for the 
year ended 31 December 2014 and 2013:

 

Year ended 
31 December 2014

Year ended 
31 December 2013

Profit before tax 579,553 467,927

Non tax deductible expenses 104,135 133,006

Taxable results 683,688 600,933

Current income tax at 15% 
(10% in 2013) 102,553 60,093

AUDITOR’S
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25. Commitments and contingencies

Commitments and contingencies as at 31 December 2014 and 2013 include guarantees 
received from and extended to customers as follows:

31 December 2014 31 December 2013

Contingent liabilities

Guarantees in favour of customers 9,005,776 6,557,417

Un-drawn credit commitments 1,444,450 2,097,235

The Bank has collaterals pledged from customers including cash collateral, mortgages and 
other assets in favour of the Bank.

The Bank provides performance guarantees in favour of third parties. These agreements 
have fixed limits and are generally issued for a period of up to two years. 

Legal
In the normal course of business the Bank may be presented with legal claims. As at 31 
December 2014, the Bank had outstanding legal cases considered normal through the 
course of business, having no material impact on the Bank’s activity.

26. Commitments and contingencies (continued)

The Bank has entered into operating lease commitments for the premises of its Head Office 
and most of its branches with lease terms of between 5 to 10 years. The Bank does not 
have an option to purchase the property at the expiry of the lease period.

Operating lease rentals are repayable as follows:

31 December 2014 31 December 2013

Not later than one year 12,453 71,054

Between one and five years 750,679 560,935

More than five years 44,013 97,996

Total 807,146 729,985
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27. related party transactions 

The ultimate controlling party of the Bank as at 31 December 2014 is Societe Generale.

A number of banking transactions are entered into with related parties in the normal course 
of business. These transactions include loans, deposits and other transactions carried out 
on normal commercial terms and at market rates.

As at 31 December 2014 the Bank had the following contractual terms and transactions 
with its shareholders:

Amount interest rate Value date Maturity date

Lending to Societe 
Generale

- - - -

Due to Societe 
Generale 

11,193    - - -

Due from Societe 
Generale

388,876 - - -

As at 31 December 2013 the Bank had the following contractual terms and transactions 
with its shareholders:

Amount interest rate Value date Maturity date

Lending to Societe 
Generale

2,746,712 0.07% 27 Dec 2013 10 Jan 2014

Due to Societe 
Generale 

99,020 - - -

Due from 
Societe Generale

43,671 - - -

 

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2014
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27. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 
(ContInUeD)
28. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

Directors Board of Directors 

2014 2013 2014 2013

Loans

Loans outstanding 
at beginning of the year

- - - -

Loans issued during the year - - - -

Loans repaid during the year - - - -

Loans outstanding 
at end of the year

- - - -

Interest income earned - -

Current accounts and deposits

Deposits at beginning of the year 121,958 110,436 46,696 19,602

Deposits received during the year 27,955 63,925 252 42,219

Deposits repaid during the year (62,861) (52,403) (24,084) (15,125)

Deposits at end of the year 87,051 121,958 22,865 46,696

Interest paid (9,535) (3,875) (25) (1)

Fee and commission income 76 100 92 108

Profit from foreign exchange 
transactions

22 18 15 5

Management compensation (51,633) (48,891) - -

Amounts disclosed in relation to Directors and Board of Directors classifications include 
close members of their families and entities that are controlled, jointly controlled or 
significantly influenced by, or for which significant voting power in such entity resides with, 
directly or indirectly, any director or close family member.

28. Events after the reporting date

There are no events after the reporting date that would require either adjustments or 
additional disclosures in the financial statements of the Bank.

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2014
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29. Financial risk management

(a) Overview

The Bank has exposure to the following 
risks from its use of financial instruments:

• credit riskt
• liquidity risk
• market risks
• operational risks

This note presents information about the 
Bank’s exposure to each of the above risks 
and its objectives, policies and processes for 
measuring and managing risk and capital. 

risk management framework

The Board of Directors has overall 
responsibility for the establishment and 
oversight of the Bank’s risk management 
framework. The Board has established the 
Bank Asset and Liability (ALCO), Credit and 
Operational Risk committees, which are 
responsible for developing and monitoring 
Bank risk management policies in their 
specified areas. All Board committees 
have both executive and non-executive 
members and report regularly to the Board 
of Directors on their activities.
The Bank’s risk management policies are 
established to identify and analyse the risks 
faced by the Bank, to set appropriate risk 
limits and controls, and to monitor risks 
and adherence to limits. Risk management 
policies and systems are reviewed regularly 
to reflect changes in market conditions, 
products and services offered. The Bank, 
through its training and management 
standards and procedures, aims to develop 
a disciplined and constructive control 
environment, in which all employees 
understand their roles and obligations.

The Bank Audit Committee is responsible 
for monitoring compliance with the Bank’s 
risk management policies and procedures, 
and for reviewing the adequacy of the risk 

management framework in relation to the 
risks faced by the Bank. The Bank Audit 
Committee is assisted in these functions 
by Internal Audit. Internal Audit undertakes 
both regular and ad-hoc reviews of risk 
management controls and procedures, 
the results of which are reported to the 
Audit Committee. 

Current developments 

Management of the Bank performs daily 
monitoring over all positions of assets and 
liabilities, income and expenses, as well 
as the development of the international 
financial markets, applying the best banking 
practices. Based on this, the management 
analyses profitability, liquidity and the 
cost of funds and implements adequate 
measures in respect to credit, market 
(primarily interest rate) and liquidity risk, 
thus limiting the possible negative effects 
from the global economic. In this way the 
Bank responds to the challenges of the 
market environment, maintaining a stable 
capital and liquidity position.

(b)  Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to 
the Bank if a customer or counterparty 
to a financial instrument fails to meet 
its contractual obligations, and arises 
principally from the Bank’s loans and 
advances to customers and other banks 
and investment securities. 

For risk management reporting purposes, 
the Bank considers and consolidates all 
elements of credit risk exposure (such as 
individual obligor default risk, country and 
sector risk). For risk management purposes, 
credit risk arising on trading securities is 
managed independently, but reported as a 
component of market risk exposure.

AUDITOR’S
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Management of credit risk

The Board of Directors has delegated 
responsibility for the management of 
credit risk to its Bank Credit Committee. A 
consolidated Credit Risk Sector, reporting 
to the Chief Risk Officer and in parallel to 
the Executive Officer, is responsible for 
oversight of the Bank’s credit risk. 

The management of credit risk is 
accomplished through:

n  Formulating credit risk policies 
in consultation with business units, 
covering collateral requirements, credit 
assessment, risk grading and reporting, 
documentary and legal procedures, and 
compliance with regulatory and statutory 
requirements.

n  Establishing and monitoring of the 
delegation levels and escalating process 
regarding the credit approvals. Board of 
Directors delegates its power of approval 
authority to the Credit Committee of the 
Bank (currently for the amount up to Euro 
1 million or its equivalent in Lek or other 
currencies)

n  Reviewing and assessing credit risk. 
Bank Management through specific 
structures of Credit Risk Management 
assesses all credit exposures limits, prior 
to the final approval and disbursement. 
Renewals and reviews of facilities are 
subject to the same process.

n Limiting concentrations of exposure 
to counterparties. The bank structures 
the levels of credit risk it undertakes 
by placing limits on the amount of risk 
accepted in relation to one borrower or 
groups of borrowers. 

Moreover, concentration limits by sectors 
of economy are being established. Such 
risks are monitored on a revolving basis 
and subject to an annual or more frequent 
review, as considered necessary. 

n  Monitoring the actual exposures against 
limits on a frequent basis. Exposure 
to credit risk is also managed through 
regular analysis of the ability of borrowers 
and potential borrowers to meet interest 
and capital repayment obligations, even 
by changing these lending limits where 
appropriate.  

n Developing and maintaining the Bank’s 
risk grading in order to categorise 
exposures according to the degree of 
risk of financial loss faced and to focus 
management on the attendant risks. The 
risk grading system is used in determining 
where impairment provisions may be 
required against specific credit exposures. 
The current risk grading framework is 
based on a general categorization of 
the loan portfolio in performing and 
non-performing loans, classified into 8 
categories and sub-categories, which 
reflect various degrees of risk of default 
and the availability of collateral or other 
credit risk mitigation. The responsibility 
for setting the risk grades remains with 
the Credit Risk Management and is 
subject to the final approval by Credit 
Committee or the Management. The risk 
grading is also subject to regular reviews 
performed by Societe Generale, and the 
Group risk and impairment measurement 
policies and guidelines.

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2014
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(b) Credit risk (continued)

Loans & Advances to 
customers

Loans & Advances to 
banks investment Securities Lending commitments 

and financial guarantees

2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013

Carrying amount / Amount 
committed / Guaranteed

38,976,079 37,620,752 1,187,751 1,645,248 20,514,693 17,536,082
10,450,226 8,654,651

At amortized cost -

Grade: Low-fair risk 33,785,088 32,870,365 1,187,751 1,645,248

Grade: Watch list 2,873,627 2,447,645

Grade: Substandard 718,833 1,289,076

Grade: Doubtful 713,534 494,323

Grade: Loss 2,496,143 1,634,967

Total gross amount 40,587,225 38,736,375 1,187,751 1,645,248

Allowance for impairment 
(individual & collective)

(1,611,146) (1,115,624)

Net Carrying Amount 38,976,079 37,620,752 1,187,751 1,645,248

Available for sale

Grade: Low-fair risk 20,514,693 17,536,082

Grade: Watch list

Grade: Substandard

Grade: Doubtful

Grade: Loss

Total carrying amount 20,514,693 17,536,082

Allowance for impairment 
(individual)

Off Balance Sheet

Maximum exposure

Lending commitments 1,444,450 2,097,235

Grade: Low-fair risk

Financial Guarantees

Grade: Low-fair risk 9,005,776 6,557,417

Total Exposure 10,450,226 8,654,651
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Exposure to credit risk 

(i) Loans and advances to financial institutions and available-for-sale investments

Neither past due nor impaired 31 December 
2014

31 December 
2013

Loans and advances to financial 
institutions

Fair risk (commercial banks) 1,187,751 1,645,248

Available-for-sale investments

Government bonds and treasury bills 20,514,693 17,536,082

Total carrying amount 21,702,444 19,181.330

AUDITOR’S
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(ii) Loans and Advances to Customers Net
31 December 2014 31 December 2013

Individually impaired

  Grade: Substandard 301,624 313,290

  Grade: Doubtful 68,430 227,438

  Grade: Loss 2,102,469 1,112,864

Gross amount 2,472,523 1,653,592

Allowance for impairment (1,051,055) (573,932)

Carrying amount (A) 1,421,468 1,079,660

Portfolio based allowance for losses

  Grade: Standard (low-fair risk) 33,920,590 32,996,895

  Grade: Special mention 2,873,627 2,447,645

  Grade: Substandard 417,209 975,787

  Grade: Doubtful 645,104 266,885

  Grade: Loss 393,688 522,103

Gross amount 38,250,218 37,209,314

Allowance for impairment (560,091) (541,691)

Carrying amount (B) 37,690,127 36,667,623

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2014
(amounts in Lek‘000, unless otherwise stated)

reconciling items (55,754) (10,201)

+ Bailiff fees paid 133,432 133,267

-  Disbursement fees  (135,516) (126,531)

-  Debtors for maintenance fees (53,670) (16,937)

Total (C) (55,754) (10,201)

Total carrying amount  (A+B+C) (ref: 9.1, 9.2) 39,055,842 37,737,082
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impaired loans and securities
Impaired loans and securities are loans 
and securities for which the Bank 
determines that it is probable that it will be 
unable to collect all principal and interest 
due according to the contractual terms of 
the loan / securities agreement(s). 

Past due but not impaired loans
Loans and securities where contractual 
interest or principal payments are past due 
but the Bank believes that impairment is 
not appropriate on the basis of the level of 
security / collateral available and / or the stage 
of collection of amounts owed to the Bank.

Loans with renegotiated terms
Loans with renegotiated terms are loans 
that have been restructured due to 
deterioration in the borrower’s financial 
position and where the Bank has made 
concessions that it would not otherwise 
consider. Once the loan is restructured 
it remains in this category independent 
of satisfactory performance after 
restructuring.

Allowances for impairment
The Bank establishes an allowance for 
impairment losses that represents its 
estimation regarding the incurred losses 
in its loan portfolio. The main components 
of this allowance are a specific loss 
component that relates to individually 
significant exposures, and a collective 
loan loss allowance established for Banks 
of homogeneous assets in respect of 
losses that have been incurred but have 
not been identified on loans subject to 
individual assessment for impairment.

Write-off policy
The Bank writes off a loan / security 
balance (and any related allowances for 
impairment losses) when Bank Credit 
determines that the loans / securities 
are uncollectible. This determination is 
reached after considering information 
such as the occurrence of significant 
changes in the borrower / issuer’s 
financial position such that the borrower 
/ issuer can no longer pay the obligation 
and proceeds from collateral will not be 
sufficient to pay back the entire exposure. 
For smaller balance standardized loans, 
write off decisions generally are based on 
a product specific past due status as well 
as on legal actions followed related to the 
enforcement procedure.

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2014
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Past due but not individually impaired comprises:

30-90 days: Special Mention 2,873,627 2,447,645

90-180 days: Substandard 417,209 975,787

180 days - 270 days: Doubtful 645,104 266,885

270 + days: Loss 393,688 522,103

Carrying amount 4,329,628 4,212,419

(b) Credit risk (continued)

(ii) Loans and Advances to Customers Net (continued)
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(b) Credit risk (continued)

(ii) Loans and Advances to Customers Net (continued)

Analysis of the gross and net (of allowances for impairment) amounts of individually impaired 
assets by risk grade are presented as follows:
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31 December 2014

Gross Net

individually impaired

  Grade: Substandard 301,624 201,411

  Grade: Doubtful 68,430 21,492

  Grade: Loss 2,102,469 1,198,564

Totali 2,472,523 1,421,467

31 December 2013

Gross Net

individually impaired

  Grade: Substandard                   313,290 249,174

  Grade: Doubtful                   227,438 137,353

  Grade: Loss                1,112,864 693,133

Totali               1,653,592 1,079,660

The Bank holds collateral against loans and advances to customers. The Bank 
implements its internal guidelines on the acceptability of specific classes of collateral 
or credit risk mitigation. 

The Bank holds collateral mainly in the form of:  
n Real Estate mortgages over residential as well as business properties;
n Pledge over business assets in operation such as  machinery and equipment, inventory, 
and accounts receivable;
n Cash collateral and certain securities (i.e. Treasury Bills), etc.

Estimates of fair value are based on the value of collateral assessed at the time of borrowing, 
and generally are not updated on an annual basis. The revision takes place when the loan 
is individually assessed as impaired, except for cases where the review is requested by the 
customer, the loan is in arrears, or there is a significant decrease in the market prices for real 
estate premises. Collateral generally is not held over loans and advances to banks, except 
when securities are held as part of reverse repurchase and securities borrowing activity. 
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2014
(amounts in Lek‘000, unless otherwise stated)

31 December 2014 31 December 2013

Total collaterals received

-  For loans and advances to financial 
institutions

1,175,673 955,212

-  For investing in G. Bond in Euro                1,401,400 1,402,000

-  For loans to customers 122,500,953 112,970,004

Total 125,078,026 115,327,216

Gross maximum exposure 

31 December 2014 31  December  2013

Cash balances with Central Bank 
(excluding cash on hand) 7,899,765 10,172,759

Due from Banks 1,187,751 1,645,248

Available for sale investments 20,514,693 17,536,082

Loans and advances to customers 
(including financial lease)

40,666,987 38,852,705

Total 70,269,196 68,206,794

Un-drawn credit commitments 1,444,450 2,097,235

Letters of credit 3,561,912 2,136,234

Guarantees in favor of customers 5,443,864 4,421,183

Total credit related commitments 10,450,226 8,654,651

Total Credit Risk exposure 80,719,422 76,861,445

(b) Credit risk (continued)

(ii) Loans to customers, net (continued)

Maximum Exposure to Credit Risk without taking account of any collateral and other credit 
enhancements (gross of any impairment). The following table shows the current maximum 
exposure to credit risk for the applicable components of statement of financial position: The 
maximum exposure is presented without taking into account any collateral and other credit 
enhancements (gross of any impairments )
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2014
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(b)  Credit risk (continued)

(ii) Loans to customers, net (continued)

31 December  2014 31 December  2013

Trade 11,505,421 28% 11,496,871 30%

Construction 1,528,561 4% 1,483,529 4%

Services 2,487,728 6% 2,183,890 6%

Production and processing industry 9,713,600 24% 7,871,812 20%

Telecommunication 1,998,736 5% 2,126,081 5%

Agriculture and fishing 101,542 0% 129,961 0%

Public institutions 62,164 0% 52,549 0%

Others 13,189,473 32% 13,391,683 35%

Total 40,587,225 100% 38,736,376 100%

Settlement risk

The Bank’s activities may give rise to risk at 
the time of settlement of transactions and 
trades. Settlement risk is the risk of loss 
due to the failure of a company to honor 
its obligations to deliver cash, securities or 
other assets as contractually agreed.

For certain types of transactions the 
Bank mitigates this risk by conducting 
settlements through a settlement/ clearing 

agent to ensure that a trade 
is settled only when both parties have 
fulfilled their contractual settlement 
obligations. Settlement limits form part 
of the credit approval / limit monitoring 
process described earlier. Acceptance 
of settlement risk on free settlement 
trades requires transaction specific or 
counterparty specific approvals from 
Bank Risk Department.

Gross concentration of credit risk as at December 2014 and 2013 by economic sector is 
detailed as follows:
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 (c)  Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Bank will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations from 
its financial liabilities.

Management of liquidity risk

The Bank’s approach to managing liquidity 
is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will 
always have sufficient liquidity to meet its 
liabilities when due, under both normal 
and stressed conditions, without incurring 
unacceptable losses or risking damage to 
the Bank’s reputation. Liquidity policies 
and procedures are subject of approval 
and review by Board of Directors. Certain 
decisions may be delegated to ALCO.

The Bank’s liquidity management process 
includes:

• Day-to-day funding, managed by 
monitoring future cash flows to ensure 
that requirements can be met. These 
include replenishment of funds as they 
mature or are borrowed by customers;
• Monitoring statement of financial 
position liquidity ratios against internal 
and regulatory requirements; and
• Managing the concentration and profile of 
debt maturities. 

The responsibility for the management of 
daily liquidity position remains with the 
Treasury Department. Daily reports cover 
the projected estimated cash flows for 
the next day, week, and month, which are 
considered as key liquidity management 
periods. The starting point for those 
projections is the analysis of the contractual 
maturity of the financial liabilities and the 
expected collection date for the financial 
assets. 
The Management of short and medium term 
liquidity is a responsibility of ALCO. ALCO 
analyses on a monthly basis the liquidity 
position of the Bank and approves any 
actions deemed as necessary.

Exposure to liquidity risk

Maturity analysis for non-derivative 
financial liabilities
The table below set out the remaining 
contractual maturities of non-derivative 
financial liabilities including commitments 
and financial guarantees 

31 December 2014

 Gross nominal outflow 

Carrying 
amount 

Up to 1 
month

1 to 3 
months

3 to 6
 months 

6 to 12 
months

1 to 5 
years 

Over 5 
years

Loans and advances 
from financial institutions

4,026,273 (2,421,937) (24,671) (143,841) (915,682) (577,801) -

Due to customers 58,899,592 (18,510,907) (6,961,871) (7,562,374) (21,968,260) (4,372,594) -

Un-drawn credit 
commitments

1,444,450 (67,960) (266,023) (129,188) (981,279) - -

Letters of credit 3,561,912 (90,998) (3,456,900) (14,014) - -

Guarantees in favor 
of customers

5,443,864 (656,654) (1,311,292) (1,145,256) (1,861,148) (457,108) (12,407)

73,376,092 (21,748,456) (12,020,756) (8,980,659) (25,740,384) (5,407,504) (12,407)
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31 December 2013

Gross nominal outflow 

Carrying 
amount 

Up to 1 
month

1 to 3
 months

3 to 6
 months 

6 to 12 
months

1 to 5 
years 

Over 5 
years

Loans and advances
from financial institutions

4,996,978 (2,978,968) (100,022) (99,912) (1,295,504) (621,132) -

Due to customers 56,688,822 (15,340,842) (7,657,918) (8,270,838) (21,808,590) (4,549,458)

Un-drawn credit 
commitments

2,097,235 (70,022) (303,102) (320,233) (1,403,877)

Letters of credit 2,136,234 (655,943) (1,473,280) (7,010)

Guarantees in favor 
of customers

4,421,183 (148,059) (944,392) (677,557) (2,038,214) (588,217) (24,745)

70,340,451 (19,193,835) (10,478,714) (9,375,549) (26,546,185) (5,758,806) (24,745)

The key measure used by the Bank for 
managing liquidity risk is the ratio of highly 
liquid assets to short term liabilities, and the 
cumulative gap up to 3- months over total 
assets. For this purpose the highly liquid 
assets are considered as including cash 
and cash equivalents and available for sale 
securities portfolio. The Liquidity ratios 
defined by the Bank are in compliance with 
Central Bank requirements imposed by the 
Regulation ‘On Liquidity Risk Management”. 

Funds are raised using a range of instruments 
including deposits, other liabilities evidenced 
by paper, and share capital. This enhances 
funding flexibility, limits dependence on any 
one source of funds and generally lowers the 
cost of funds. The Bank makes its best efforts 
to maintain a balance between continuity 
of funding and flexibility through the use 
of liabilities with a range of maturity. The 
Bank continually assesses liquidity risk by 
identifying and monitoring changes in funding 
required to meet business goals and targets 
set in terms of the overall Bank strategy.



Up to 1 
month

1 to 3 
months

3 to 6 
months

6 to 12 
months 1 to 5 years Over 5 

years
Non- 

specific Total

Assets

Cash and 
cash equivalents

2,988,764 2,988,764

Restricted balances 
with Central Bank

870,442 839,641 908,923 2,721,128 416,655 5,756,788

Loans and advances
financial institutions

661 1,330 128,765 597,115 459,880 1,187,751

Available-for-sale i
nvestments

667,997 1,591,576 2,431,164 5,230,997 7,829,712 2,763,246 20,514,693

Loans to customers 3,624,726 1,599,947 3,189,006 8,271,671 16,141,098 6,229,393 39,055,842

Property, plant and 
equipment and 
intangible assets

817,694 817,694

Assets gained through
legal process

901,994 901,994

Other assets 15,918 27,579 260,247 303,744

 8,168,508 4,060,072 6,657,859 17,983,152 24,847,344 8,992,640 817,694 71,527,268

Liabilities

Due to financial 
institutions

2,421,500 24,594 128,587 907,474 544,119 4,026,273

Due to customers 18,505,454 6,941,088 7,513,828 22,494,847 3,444,375 - 58,899,592

Other liabilities 287,462 129,564 1,447 - 418,473

Equity 477,000 7,705,931 8,182,930

Total 21,214,416 7,095,246 7,642,416 23,934,437 3,988,494 - 7,705,931 71,527,268

Liquidity GAP (13,045,908) (3,035,173) (984,557) (5,987,533) 20,858,851 8,992,640 (6,888,237) -

Cumulative (13,045,908) (16,081,081) (17,065,638) (22,963,253) (2,104,402) 6,888,237 - -

AUDITOR’S
REPORT 29. FInAnCIAl rIsk MAnAGeMent (ContInUeD)

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2014
(amounts in Lek‘000, unless otherwise stated)

(c)  Liquidity risk (continued)

The following tables show the discounted cash flows from the Bank’s assets and liabilities on 
the basis of their earliest possible remaining periods to repayment. 

The Bank’s expected cash flows may vary significantly from this analysis. For example, 
demand deposits from customers are expected to maintain a stable or increasing balance.

In addition the Bank holds a portfolio of liquid assets as part of its liquidity risk 
management strategy.

The Bank’s exposure to the liquidity risk as at 31 December 2014 is presented as follows:
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 (c)      Liquidity risk (continued)

The Bank’s exposure to the liquidity risk as at 31 December 2014 is presented as follows:

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2014
(amounts in Lek‘000, unless otherwise stated)

Up to 1 
month

1 to 3 
months

3 to 6 
months

6 to 12 
months 1 to 5 years Over 5 

years Non- specific Total

Assets

Cash and cash 
equivalents

5,580,455 - - - - - 5,580,455

Restricted balances 
with Central Bank

882,230 845,697 906,987 2,450,730 388,828 - - 5,474,472

Loans and advances 
financial institutions

241 485 102,598 253,863 1,288,060 - - 1,645,248

Available-for-sale 
investments

1,232,880 1,481,324 2,512,754 2,524,077 9,500,887 284,159 - 17,536,082

Loans to customers 3,447,970 3,260,561 3,510,394 5,675,452 15,394,284 6,448,420 - 37,736,082

Property, plant and 
equipment and 
intangible assets

- - - - - 906,051 906,051

Assets gained 
through legal 
process

- - - 880,156 - - 880,156

Other assets 7,221 74,890 76,993 159,104

 11,150,996 5,588,068 7,032,734 11,859,168 26,649,052 6,732,580 906,051 69,918,649

Liabilities

Due to financial 
institutions

2,959,519 61,454 136,533 1,277,051 562,421 - - 4,996,978

Due to customers 15,330,987 7,616,367 8,168,344 22,071,331 3,501,793 - - 56,688,822

Other liabilities 209,516 37,673 - 11,384 - - 99,441 357,988

Equity - - - 407,834 - - 7,467,027 7,874,860

Total 18,499,995 7,715,495 8,304,877 23,844,600 4,064,214 - 7,566,468 69,918,648

Liquidity GAP (7,348,999) (2,127,427) (1,272,143) (11,908,432) 22,584,838 6,732,580 (6,660,417) -

Cumulative (7,348,999) (9,476,426) (10,748,569) (22,657,001) (72,162) 6,660,417 0 -
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 (d)  Market risk 

Market risk is the risk that changes in market 
prices, such as interest rate, equity prices, 
foreign exchange rates and credit spreads 
(not relating to changes in the obligor’s 
/ issuer’s credit standing) will affect the 
Bank’s income or the value of its holdings 
of financial instruments. The objective of 
market risk management is to manage 
and control market risk exposures within 
acceptable parameters, while optimizing 
the return on risk.

Management of market risks

The Bank separates its exposure to market 
risk between trading and non-trading 
portfolios. Trading portfolios include those 
positions arising from market-making 
transactions where the Bank acts as 
principal with clients or with the market, 
together with financial assets and liabilities 
that are managed on a fair value basis. The 
foreign exchange position is treated as 
part of the Bank’s trading portfolios for risk 
management purposes.

Non-trading portfolios primarily arise from 
the interest rate management of the entity’s 

retail and commercial banking assets 
and liabilities. Non-trading portfolios also 
consist of risks arising from the Bank’s 
held-to-maturity and available-for-sale 
investments.

Overall authority for market risk is vested 
in ALCO. ALCO is responsible for the 
development of detailed risk management 
policies and the day-to-day review of their 
implementation.

Exposure to market risks – trading 
portfolios

The Bank is exposed to the effects of 
fluctuations in the prevailing foreign 
currency exchange rates on its financial 
position and cash flows. 

Exposure to foreign exchange risk

The Bank is exposed to currency 
risk through transactions in foreign 
currencies. As the currency in which the 
Bank presents its financial statements 
is the Albanian Lek, the Bank’s financial 
statements are effected by movements in 
the exchange rates between the Albanian 
Lek and other currencies.

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2014
(amounts in Lek‘000, unless otherwise stated)
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 (d)  Market risk (continued)

The analysis of monetary positions as at 31 December 2014 by currencies in which
they were denominated is as follows:

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2014
(amounts in Lek‘000, unless otherwise stated)

Lek Euro USD Other Total

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents                518,715 2,133,851 162,037    174,161 2,988,764

Restricted balances with Central Bank             2,821,013 2,649,999 285,776 - 5,756,788

Loans and advances to banks and 
financial institutions

            1,051,047 9,951 126,753 - 1,187,751

Available-for-sale investments           17,730,682 2,784,011 - - 20,514,693

Loans to customers, net 15,005,490 20,729,447 3,320,093 811 39,055,841

Property and Equipment 573,297 20,730 - - 594,027

Intangible assets 223,666 - - - 223,666

Assets gained through legal process 203,609 698,385 - - 901,994

Other assets 272,803 9,357 1,349 20,235 303,744

Total 38,400,323 29,035,731 3,896,008 195, 206 71,527,268

Liabilities

Due to financial institutions 1,007,705 1,788,591 1,229,825 152 4,026,273

Due to customers 28,998,829 27,110,932 2,615,665 174,165 58,899,592

Other liabilities 303,006 108,947 6,511 8 418,473

Shareholders’ equity 8,182,930 - - - 8,182,930

Total 38,492,471 29,008,471 3,852,002 174,324 71,527,268

Net position (92,148) 27,260 44,006 20,882
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 (d)  Market risk (continued)

The analysis of monetary positions as at 31 December 2013 by currencies in which 
they were denominated is as follows:

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2014
(amounts in Lek‘000, unless otherwise stated)

Lek Euro USD Other Total

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 762,796 3,340,630 1,319,618 157,411 5,580,455

Restricted balances with Central Bank 2,539,885 2,643,718 290,870 - 5,474,472

Loans and advances to banks and 
financial institutions

1,537,866 5,522 101,860 - 1,645,248

Available-for-sale investments 14,752,998 2,783,084 17,536,082

Loans to customers, net 13,715,805 21,017,423 3,003,272 583 37,737,082

Property and equipment 627,646 20,739 648,385

Intangible assets 257,666 257,666

Assets gained through legal process 207,820 672,336 880,156

Other assets 108,219 32,120 851 17,914 159,104

Total 34,510,701 30,515,570 4,716,470 175,908 69,918,649

Liabilities

Due to financial institutions 2,710,998 2,151,583 134,310 87 4,996,978

Due to customers 26,532,799 26,882,305 3,114,592 159,127 56,688,822

Other liabilities 274,775 77,974 5,234 4 357,988

Shareholders equity 5,132,909 1,357,566 1,384,386 7,874,861

Total 34,651,481 30,469,428 4,638,521 159,218 69,918,648

Net position (140,781) 46,142 77,949 16,690
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 (d)  Market risk (continued)

Exposure to market risks – trading 
portfolios

The principal risk to which non-trading 
portfolios are exposed is the risk of loss 
from fluctuations in the future cash flows or 
fair values of financial instruments because 
of a change in market interest rates. 

The ALCO defines and reviews the interest 
rate pricing policy for financial assets and 
liabilities. 

The management of interest rate risk against 
interest rate gap limits is supplemented 
by monitoring the sensitivity of the Bank’s 
financial assets and liabilities to various 
standard and non-standard interest rate 
scenarios. Standard scenarios that are 
considered on a monthly basis include a 100 
basis point (bp) parallel fall or rise in all yield 
curves. 

An analysis of the Bank’s sensitivity to an 
increase or decrease in market interest rates 
(assuming no asymmetrical movement in 
yield curves and a constant statement of 
financial position) is as follows:

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2014
(amounts in Lek‘000, unless otherwise stated)

2014

Scenario Scenario

up to 1 Year scenarios over 1 Year Scenarios

100 bp
increase 

100 bp
decrease

100 bp
increase

100 bp
decrease

Estimated Profit (loss) effect (145,512) 145,512 158,458 (158,458)

2013

Scenario Scenario

up to 1 Year scenarios over 1 Year Scenarios

100 bp
increase

100 bp
decrease

100 bp
increase

100 bp
decrease

Estimated Profit (loss) effect (60,861) 60,861 29,663 (29,663)
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Weighted average
interest rate (Lek)

Weighted average
interest rate (USD)
(USD)

Weighted average
interest rate
(Euro)

31 December 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

Restricted balances with Central Bank 1.58% 2.10% - - - -

Loans to financial institutions 5.82% 5.93% 0.10% 0.08% 3.94% 6.94%

Available-for-sale investments 5.68% 6.49% - - 6.92% 6.92%

Loans to customers, net 6.96% 8.41% 5.62% 5.65% 5.87% 6.29%

Liabilities

Due to financial institutions 3.06% 5.71% 0.71% 2.24% 3.34% 3.77%

Due to customers 2.00% 3.49% 1.11% 2.03% 1.00% 2.86%

 (d)  Market risk (continued)

The average effective yields of significant categories of financial assets and liabilities of the 
Bank as at 31 December 2014 and 2013 were as follows:

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2014
(amounts in Lek‘000, unless otherwise stated)
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 (d)  Market risk (continued)

The Bank’s interest rate re-pricing analysis as at 31 December 2014 is as follows:
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2014
(amounts in Lek‘000, unless otherwise stated)

Up to 1 
month

1 to 3  
months

3 to 6  
months

6 to 12 
months

Over 1 
year

Non- 
interest 
bearing 

Total

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 696,356 2,292,407 2,988,764

Restricted balances with Central Bank 2,821,013 2,935,774 5,756,788

Loans and advances to financial 
institutions 

1,180,340 7,411 1,187,751

Available – for - sale investments 617,108 3,891,991 3,136,740 7,244,891 5,573,074 50,889 20,514,693

Loans to cutomers, net 3,849,433 4,436,594 8,110,302 21,471,140 - 1,188,373 39,055,842

Property, plant and equipment and 
intangible assets 

817,694 817,694

Assets acquired through adjudication 901,994 901,994

Other assets 303,744 303,744

7,983,912 8,328,585 11,247,041 29,896,370 5,573,074 8,498,286 71,527,268

Liabilities

Due to financial institutions 2,395,157 24,594 128,587 907,474 544,119 26,343 4,026,273

Due to customers 18,505,454 6,941,088 7,513,828 22,494,847 3,444,375 58,899,592

Other liabilities 418,473 418,473

Equity 8,182,930 8,182,930

20,900,611 6,965,682 7,642,416 23,402,320 3,988,494 8,627,746 71,527,268

Gap (12,916,700) 1,362,903 3,604,626 6,494,050 1,584,580 (129,460)

Cumulative gap (12,916,700) (11,553,797) (7,949,171) (1,455,121) 129,460 -



 (d)  Market risk (continued)

The Bank’s interest rate re-pricing analysis as at 31 December 2014 is as follows:
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2014
(amounts in Lek‘000, unless otherwise stated)

Up to 1 
month

1 to 3  
months

3 to 6  
months

6 to 12 
months

Over 1 
year

Non- 
interest 
bearing 

Total

Assets - 

Cash and cash equivalents 2,539,885 - - - - 5,580,455 5,580,455

Restricted balances with Central 
Bank - - - - 2,934,587 5,474,472

Loans and advances to financial 
institutions 1,013,062 - 101,860 855,259 688,129 - 1,645,248

Available – for - sale investments 4,549,471 1,999,333 3,220,940 4,740,503 6,342,425 219,819 17,536,082

Loans to cutomers, net - 5,623,128 8,294,791 18,069,907 - 1,199,784 37,737,082

Property, plant and equipment and 
intangible assets - - - - - 906,051 906,051

Non-current assets held for sale - - - - - 880,156 880,156

Other assets - - - - - 159,104 159,104

8,102,417 7,622,461 11,617,591 23,665,669 7,030,555 11,879,955 69,918,648

Liabilities

Due to financial institutions 2,432,080 61,454 136,533 1,277,051 562,421 527,439 4,996,978

Due to customers 15,330,987 7,616,367 8,168,344 22,071,331 3,501,793 - 56,688,822

Other liabilities 357,988 357,988

Equity 7,874,860 7,874,860

17,763,067 7,677,821 8,304,877 23,348,382 4,064,214 8,760,287 69,918,648

Gap (9,660,650) (55,360) 3,312,715 317,287 2,966,340 3,119,669

Cumulative gap (9,660,650) (9,716,010) (6,403,295) (6,086,009) (3,119,669) -
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(e)      Operational risks

Operational risk is the risk of direct or indirect 
loss arising from a wide variety of causes 
associated with the Bank’s processes, 
personnel, technology and infrastructure, 
and from external factors other than credit, 
market and liquidity risks such as those arising 
from legal and regulatory requirements and 
generally accepted standards of corporate 
behaviour. Operational risks arise from all of 
the Bank’s operations and are faced by all 
business entities.

The Bank’s objective is to manage 
operational risk so as to balance the 
avoidance of financial losses and 
damage to the Bank’s reputation with 
overall cost effectiveness and to avoid 
control procedures that restrict initiative 
and creativity.

The primary responsibility for the 
development and implementation of 
controls to address operational risk is 
assigned to senior management within 
each business unit. This responsibility is 
supported by the development of overall 
Bank standards for the management of 
operational risk in the following areas:

• requirements for appropriate 
segregation of duties, including the 
independent authorisation of transactions;
• requirements for the reconciliation and 
monitoring of transactions;
• compliance with regulatory and other 
legal requirements;
• documentation of controls and 
procedures;
•  requirements for the periodic 
assessment of operational risks faced, 
and the adequacy of controls and 
procedures to address the risks identified;
• requirements for the reporting of 
operational losses and proposed remedial 
action;
• development of contingency plans;
• training and professional development;
• ethical and business standards; and
• risk mitigation, including insurance 
where this is effective.

Compliance with Bank standards is 
supported by a programme of periodic 
reviews undertaken by specific operational 
risk structures as well as Internal Audit. 
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 (f)  Capital management

Capital management

regulatory capital

The Bank’s regulator Central Bank sets 
and monitors capital requirements. In 
implementing current capital requirements, 
the Bank is required to maintain a minimum 
prescribed ratio of 12% of the total capital 
to total risk-weighted assets. Risk-weighted 
assets are determined according to specified 
requirements that seek to reflect the varying 
levels of risk attached to assets and off-
balance sheet exposures.

The Bank calculates requirements for credit 
risk for its exposures based on capital 
adequacy regulations established by the 
Central Bank. Exposures are taken into 
account using the amounts as of statement 
of financial position. Off-balance-sheet credit 
related commitments are taken into account 
by applying different categories of conversion 
factors, designed to convert these items into 
statement of financial position equivalents. 
The resulting equivalent amounts are then 
weighted for risk using different percentages 
(0%, 20%, 50%, 100%, and 150%) 
depending on the class of exposure.

Various credit risk mitigation techniques are 
used, for example collateralized transactions 
and guarantees. The Bank’s regulatory 
capital is analyzed into two tiers:

Tier 1 capital (core capital), which includes 
ordinary share capital, share premium, 
statutory reserve, other general reserves, 
retained earnings from prior years and 
minority interests after deductions for 
goodwill, intangible assets and unrealized 
loss from available for sale investments.

Tier 2 capital (supplementary capital), which 
includes qualifying subordinated liabilities, 
namely perpetual debt and subordinated 
term debt.

The following limits are applied to elements 
of the capital base: Qualifying tier 2 capital 
cannot exceed tier 1 capital; and qualifying 
term subordinated loan capital may not 
exceed 50 percent of tier 1 capital. The 
Bank’s policy is to maintain a strong capital 
base so as to maintain investor, creditor and 
market confidence and to sustain future 
development of the business. The impact of 
the level of capital on shareholders’ return 
is also recognized and the Bank recognizes 
the need to maintain a balance between the 
higher returns that might be possible with 
greater gearing and the advantages and 
security afforded by a sound capital position.

As of 31 December 2014 the bank’s capital 
adequacy ratio was 14.96% (31 December 
2013: 14.12%)
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